

Page intentionally blank

Contents

1.	Introduction	1
1.1	Overview	1
1.2	Methodology	1
1.3	Notes to Support the Following Tables	3
2.	Archaeological Remains	4
2.1	Scheduled Monuments	4
2.2	Non-designated Archaeological Remains	5
3.	Built Heritage Assets	37
3.1	Conservation Areas	37
3.2	Listed Buildings	37
3.3	Non-designated Built Heritage Assets	111
4.	Historic Landscapes	112
4.1	Introduction	112
4.2	Historic Parks and Gardens	112
4.3	Historic Lanes and Protected Lanes	113
4.4	Historic Landscape Character Units (Suffolk)	116
4.5	Historic Landscape Character Units (Essex)	117

1. Introduction

1.1 Overview

- National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (here on referred to as National Grid) is making an application for development consent to reinforce the transmission network between Bramford Substation in Suffolk, and Twinstead Tee in Essex. The Bramford to Twinstead Reinforcement ('the project') would be achieved by the construction and operation of a new electricity transmission line over a distance of approximately 29km (18 miles), the majority of which would follow the general alignment of the existing overhead line network.
- This historic environment gazetteer has been produced to support the Environmental Statement (ES) Chapter 8: Historic Environment (application document 6.2.8) which supports the application for development consent under the Planning Act 2008.

1.2 Methodology

- 1.2.1 The gazetteer is based on data from the following sources:
 - Historic Environment Record (HER): data was purchased from Essex and Suffolk County Council in August 2022;
 - The National Heritage List for England (NHLE) developed and maintained by Historic England for listed building and conservation area information (September 2022);
 - Site inspection (June 2022) and online Streetview images (September 2022) used for historic lanes in Suffolk;
 - Data on Protected Lanes (Essex County Council (ECC), 2013);
 - Bramford to Twinstead: Aerial Investigation and Mapping Report (ECC, 2021b);
 - Geophysical survey; and
 - Archaeological trial trench (ATT) excavation.

- 1.2.2 This gazetteer is divided into three types of historic environment asset type:
 - Archaeological remains (Chapter 2) this includes designated scheduled monuments and non-designated assets (assets in the county HER) and additional data derived from an aerial interpretation and mapping exercise (AIM), geophysical survey and archaeological trial trenching (ATT);
 - Historic buildings and other structures (summarised as 'built heritage') (Chapter 3) this includes standing structures such as listed buildings (Grades I, II* and II), conservation areas and non-designated historic structures; and
 - Historic landscapes (Chapter 4) this includes designated assets (registered historic parks and gardens, important hedgerows and Protected Lanes in Essex), non-designated formal parkland and formal gardens, and the Historic Landscape Character Areas based on the HER datasets.
- The designation data was acquired based on the Order Limits plus a 3km buffer extending outwards from those lines at the time of sourcing. This area encompasses all of the study area required for the Order Limits at application. In terms of non-designated assets, a 250m study area projecting outwards from the Order Limits has been used as sufficient to show the project in its archaeological context. Furthermore, the non-designated archaeological resource constitutes buried archaeology where setting is of less concern than it is for built heritage or designated parks and gardens as they are not visually appreciated assets.
- 1.2.4 In summary, the study areas used are:
 - Archaeological remains:
 - Scheduled monuments 3km; and
 - Non-designated archaeological assets 250m;
 - Built heritage assets:
 - Listed buildings 3km; and
 - Conservation areas 3km;
 - Historic landscapes:
 - Registered historic parks and gardens 3km;
 - Non-designated historic parks and gardens 250m;

- Protected Lanes 3km;
- Historic lanes (not designated) 250m; and
- Historic landscape character units 1km.

1.3 Notes to Support the Following Tables

- All designated heritage assets are identified by their unique ID as provided by the NHLE, for example 112273. Non-designated heritage assets are referred by the unique ID provided by the Essex and Suffolk HER where available. Essex HER data has a MEX prefix (for 'monuments of Essex') and Suffolk data has a MSF prefix (for 'monuments of Suffolk') for archaeological monuments. The Essex historic landscape character (HLC) data has a 'HEX' prefix for their numbering system. The Suffolk HLC use a name category for their HLC units.
- 1.3.2 Cropmarks have been identified through Aerial Investigation and Mapping which are associated with records within the HER. Protected Lanes have been referred to by the Lane ID provided by Braintree District Council.
- Heritage asset identified only through the Aerial Investigation and Mapping (AIM) are referred to with the Site ID provided in the reports (such as AIM Site C1, AIM Site 1) (ECC, 2012; ECC 2021). Where no ID was provided within the reports, a unique numerical identifier preceded by 'AIM' has been created e.g. AIM 01, AIM 02, etc. Heritage assets identified only through geophysical survey have been identified with the unique field and feature numbers provided in the report (Bartlett-Clark Consultancy, 2013) (e.g. geophysical survey anomaly 1A, geophysical survey anomaly1B, etc.). These identifiers have been maintained to allow for cross-referencing to the original documents.
- 1.3.4 The assets in the following tables can be found on the relevant figures along with the unique ID (application document 6.4):
 - Figure 8.1: Archaeological Assets Designated and Non-designated;
 - Figure 8.2: Built Heritage Assets Designated and Non-designated; and
 - Figure 8.3: Historic Landscape Character Units.

2. Archaeological Remains

2.1 Scheduled Monuments

Table 2.1 lists the scheduled monuments within 3km of the Order Limits, which are all assigned a **high** value for sensitivity. The approximate distances from the Order Limits are given. These are shown on ES Figure 8.1: Archaeological Assets (**application document 6.4**) along with the NHLE ID.

Table 2.1 – Scheduled Monuments Within 3km of the Order Limits

NHLE ID	Name	Distance from Order Limits
1019537	Moated site at The Old Rectory, 150m north-east of Malting Farm	2.9km
1019889	Moated site at Moat Farm, 450m south of Cobbler's Corner	20m
1003759	Wenham Castle (Little Wenham Hall)	2.7km
1019815	Moated site and remains of demolished parts of Shelley Hall, a post-medieval great house	2km
1461329	Bronze Age/Early Iron Age barrows identified by crop marks, Aldham Mill Hill (Hadleigh)	2.3km
1006067	Toppesfield Bridge, Hadleigh	1.3km
1010501	Circular cropmark at Ferriers Farm, 190m south-west of Hill Farm	1.5km
1011807	Roman villa south of Alphamstone church	500m
1019664	Remains of church and churchyard, 80m south-east of The Ryes	800m
1011476	Stanley Hall moated site	1.8km
1011806	Roman villa 480m south-east of Hill Farm	1.2km

2.2 Non-designated Archaeological Remains

Table 2.2 lists the non-designated archaeological remains within the Order Limits and within 250m outside them and their sensitivity value. The sensitivity value has been assigned to non-designated assets based on the description set out in Table 1.1 in ES Appendix 5.4: Assessment Criteria (application document 6.3.5.4) and are assigned per asset in a table column. These are shown on ES Figure 8.1: Archaeological Assets (application document 6.4) along with the reference.

Table 2.2 – Non-designated Archaeological Assets

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF18242	MONUMENT	A1071 - Hurdle Makers Hill	The former site of a milestone.	Negligible	0-250m
MSF42439	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Fen Farm	Fen Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Edition OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular multi yard with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits alongside a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF4506	MONUMENT	Oval cropmark, Bullen Farm	Oval cropmark, possibly long barrow.	Low	0-250m
MSF40560	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: (Bullen Farm)	(Bullen Farm), Bramford. 19th century farmstead and farmhouse. Regular courtyard L-shaped plan formed by working agricultural buildings. The farmhouse is set away from the yard. The farmstead has been totally demolished. Located within an isolated position.	Low	0-250m
MSF15844	MONUMENT	Burstall Bridge	Bridge shown on Bowen's 1755 and Hodskinson's 1783 maps.	Low	0-250m
MSF43788	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Cherryground	Cherryground is a farmstead visible on the 1st Edition OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a dispersed plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a private track in an isolated location. This farmstead survives in part.	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF19394	MONUMENT	Bullen Wood	Ancient Woodland.	Low	0-250m
MSF11952	MONUMENT	Thorpes Hill	1880s: rectilinear sided Earthwork bank shown in field (possible meadow) adjoining Belstead Brook.	Low	0-250m
MSF16790	MONUMENT	Old Mill House	A water mill and leat shown on map of 1595.	Low	0-250m
MSF43384	MONUMENT	Bullen Green, Bramford	Green visible on Hodskinson's Map of 1783.	Low	Within
MSF33395	MONUMENT	Post-medieval boundary ditches	Post-medieval boundary ditches identified during an archaeological evaluation.	Low	0-250m
MSF42443	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Walnut Tree Farm	Walnut Tree Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a loose courtyard plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a private track.	Low	0-250m
MSF24349	MONUMENT	Line of postholes, Paridae, Cranfield Park, Burstall	Evaluation revealed seven postholes were recorded in a rough line, one providing a single sherd of either Roman or Medieval (12th-14th century) pottery.	Low	0-250m
MSF11749	MONUMENT	Roman artefact scatter of grey ware pottery.	Grey ware pottery scatter found along a footpath.	No value	0-250m
MSF24219	MONUMENT	Bulling Green (1783); Bullen Green	Green located between Bushy Grove and Foregrove.	Low	0-250m
MSF13637	MONUMENT	Ring ditch of unknown date, visible as a soilmark.	Pale soilmark - ring ditch/bank (approximately 30m in diameter).	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF42445	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Norman's Farm	Norman's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular full plan with the farmhouse set side on to the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location. This farmstead has been completely lost.	Low	Within
MSF42446	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Cane's Farm	Cane's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a dispersed plan with the farmhouse set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location. There has been a significant loss of this asset.	Low	0-250m
MSF42464	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Dove's Farm	Dove's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular L-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF42444	FARMSTEAD	Fieldbarn: Unnamed Fieldbarn	An unnamed fieldbarn is visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The barn sits along a private track in an isolated location. This barn survives intact.	Low	Within
MSF32501	MONUMENT	Findspot of Medieval coin and lead object	Medieval silver coin and lead unidentified Medieval or Post Medieval object.	Low	0-250m
MSF42447	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Hill Farm	Hill Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a loose courtyard plan with the farmhouse detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location. There has been a partial loss of the farmstead.	Low	0-250m
MSF12553	MONUMENT	Four storey Post Medieval smock mill.	Four storey smock mill, built in 1867 by Collins of Melton.	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF43812	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Mill Farm	Mill Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a linear plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a private track in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF43792	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Rectory Farm	Rectory Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard U-plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in a village location.	Low	0-250m
MSF42465	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Chattisham Hall Farm	Chattisham Hall Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a parallel plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is attached to the agricultural range. The farmstead sits along a private road in an isolation.	Low	0-250m
MSF5211	MONUMENT	Chattisham Hall Farm	Either a moat or an irregular square of drains.	Low	0-250m
MSF43816	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Red House Farm	Red House Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard full-plan, and a regular courtyard U-plan, with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is attached the agricultural range.	Low	0-250m
MSF43817	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Manor Farm	Manor Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard full-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is attached the agricultural range. The farmstead sits along a public road in a hamlet.	Low	0-250m
MSF22176	MONUMENT	Former ancient woodland of unknown date, shown on maps of 1595 and 1721.	Former ancient woodland to NE of Hintlesham Wood as shown on 1595 and 1721 maps.	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF43794	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Park Farm	Park Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard L-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF43815	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: College Farm	College Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard H-plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF43818	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Wood Farm	Wood Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard U-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF22175	MONUMENT	Hintlesham (Great) Wood	Large former part on SW side of Hintlesham (Great) Wood as mapped in 1595 & 1721 - now mainly arable.	Low	Within
MSF43808	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Normans Farm	Normans Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard L-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set side on to the yard.	Low	0-250m
MSF11448	MONUMENT	College Farm	Dark patches in field, sherds of medieval grey wares.	Low	Within
MSF5215	MONUMENT	College Farm	Dark patches in field.	Low	Within
MSF19516	MONUMENT	Ramsey Wood and Hintlesham (Great and Little) Woods	Former ancient woodlands of Ramsey Wood and Hintlesham Wood.	Low	Within
MSF16405	FINDSPOT	The Old Hall	In 1995 metal detection recovered a blade end of a socketed axe.	No value	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF12100	MONUMENT	The Old Hall	A D-shaped moat on a map of 1595. An estate map of 1826 shows the presence of a wide 'L-shaped' moat arm within a rectangular ditched/ moated area containing a building. The subsequent Tithe Map shows the remains of the former moat. Only two ponds are now shown on maps. This is possibly a former medieval moated manor, and as such relatively rare.	Medium	0-250m
MSF43813	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Old Hall Farm	Old Hall Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard U-plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF11438	MONUMENT	Medieval artefact scatter of pottery. (Med)	Pottery scatter found during fieldwalking in 1974.	No value	Within
MSF11439	MONUMENT	Post Medieval artefact scatter of pottery. (PMed)	Post medieval pottery scatter found fieldwalking in 1974.	No value	Within
MSF43484	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Hadleigh Farm	Hadleigh Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular E-plan courtyard with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a private track in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF43814	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Wood Farm (Rams Farm)	Wood Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard H-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF24633	MONUMENT	Ancient Wood, Hadleigh	Ancient Woodland identified on Tithe map but missing from 1950's OS map. Once like part of Ramsey wood in the adjoining parish of Hintlesham.	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF22837	MONUMENT	Deer Park, Pond Hall Park	Deer Park in the manor of Pond Hall.	Low	Within
MSF14017 AIM Site 11	MONUMENT	Rectangular Moat, Park Yards	Rectangular moat shown on 1830 Tithe Map and described as `Park Yards'.	Medium	Within
MSF19321	MONUMENT	Keebles Grove	Ancient Woodland.	Low	Within
MSF43362	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Ramsey Farm	Ramsey Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard full plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a private track in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF24625	MONUMENT	Bushy Coopers wood	Bushy Coopers wood: ancient woodland seen on 19th century Tithe map. Missing from later OS maps.	Low	Within
MSF24626	MONUMENT	Unidentified linear cropmarks on site of previous ancient woodland (Bushy Cooper's Wood) shown on 1839 Tithe map.	Unidentified linear cropmarks on site of previous ancient woodland (Bushy Cooper's Wood) shown on 1839 Tithe map. Shown on 1999 and 2010 aerial photographs.	Low	Within
MSF19318	MONUMENT	Tom's Wood/Broadoak Wood	Ancient Woodland.	Low	Within
MSF24635	MONUMENT	Wolves Wood	Part of the ancient woodland of Wolves Wood, the majority of which is located in the neighbouring parish of Aldham. Identified on Tithe map.	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF19317	MONUMENT	Raydon Great Wood; Cocksedge Wood	Ancient Woodland.	Low	0-250m
MSF19322	MONUMENT	Wolves Wood	Ancient Woodland.	Low	0-250m
MSF22836	MONUMENT	Pond Hall; Pond Hall Farm; Manor of Lafham (1086)	Site of moat, crenallated manor house and chapel in manor of Pond Hall (possible Domesday manor of Lafham).	Low	Within
MSF43440	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Pond Hall	Pond Hall is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard full-plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF43486	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Kate's Hill Farm	Kate's Hill Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard multi yard with full plan, linear plan and loose courtyard elements. The farmstead also features additional detached elements.	Low	0-250m
MSF5172	MONUMENT	Town House - fruit farm	Site of a likely Romano-British villa, partially excavated in 1950s.	Low	Within
MSF43488	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Townhouse Farm	Townhouse Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a dispersed plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits alongside a private track in an isolated location. Only the farmhouse remains.	Low	0-250m
MSF5184	MONUMENT	Causewayed ring ditch with central pit.	Ring ditch (single), circa 25m in diameter, appears to have a causeway on NE side and a pit in centre.	Low	0-250m
MSF20146	MONUMENT	Lower & Upper Workhouse Piece (Tithe 1839)	Workhouse suggested by field name 'Upper & Lower Workhouse-Piece'.	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF43483	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Rookery Farm	Rookery Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a loose courtyard plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF3983	MONUMENT	Ring ditch of unknown date.	Ring ditch, circa 25m in diameter.	Low	Within
MSF5152	MONUMENT	Findspot of a Roman coin of Trajan and another unidentifiable coin.	Coin of Trajan (AD 99-100), and another unidentifiable coin, found at base of third electricity pole opposite cottages.	Low	0-250m
MSF17984	MONUMENT	River Brett	Timber structure protruding from the south bank of the River Brett.	Low	0-250m
MSF5170	MONUMENT	Garry Farm	Building rubble and pottery of medieval and post-medieval date, and an iron crossbow bolt.	Low	0-250m
MSF2659	MONUMENT	Church of St Andrew	This church is in the diocese of St Edmundsbury and Ipswich, the archdeaconry of Ipswich, and the deanery of Hadleigh.	Low	0-250m
MSF38093	MONUMENT	Cropmark possible Neolithic long barrow or mortuary enclosure	Possible Neolithic long barrow or mortuary enclosure.	High	0-250m
MSF44277	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Overbury Hall	Overbury Hall is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard full-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard.	Low	0-250m
MSF23137 AIM Site 13	MONUMENT	Overbury Hall garden	Undated small sub-square moat surrounding small square island with possible central square unroofed building (possible dovecot) shown on 1880 OS map.	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF44291	FARMSTEAD	Fieldbarn: Unnamed Fieldbarn	An unnamed fieldbarn is visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The barn sits along a private track in an isolated location. This barn has been completely lost.	Low	0-250m
MSF44290	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Lot's Farm	Lot's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a linear plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in a hamlet location.	Low	0-250m
MSF44284	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Valley Farm	Valley Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard U-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set side on to the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF19326	MONUMENT	Valley Farm Wood	Ancient Woodland.	Low	0-250m
MSF44286	FARMSTEAD	Outfarm: Unnamed Outfarm	An unnamed outfarm is visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farm is laid out in a regular courtyard L-plan. The farm sits along a public road in an isolated location. This farm has been completely lost.	Low	0-250m
MSF44285	FARMSTEAD	Outfarm: Unnamed Outfarm	An unnamed outfarm is visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farm is laid out in a regular courtyard U-plan. The farm sits along a public road in an isolated location. This farm survives intact.	Low	0-250m
MSF19325	MONUMENT	Layham Grove	Ancient Woodland.	Low	0-250m
MSF44288	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Popes Green Farm	Popes Green Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a loose courtyard plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF18923	MONUMENT	Millfield Wood	Ancient Woodland.	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF43630	MONUMENT	Polstead Heath	Possible village green visible on Hodskinson's Map of 1783.	Low	Within
MSF44913	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Spencer's Farm	Spencer's Farm, Polstead. 19th century farmstead and 18th century farmhouse. Regular courtyard L-shaped plan formed by working agricultural buildings. The farmhouse is detached facing side on to the yard. Significant loss (over 50%) of the traditional farm complex.	Low	0-250m
MSF44903	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: White Hall	White Hall, Polstead. 19th century farmstead and 15th century farmhouse. Regular courtyard U-shaped plan formed by working agricultural buildings, with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is set away from the yard. Significant loss (over 50%) of the traditional farm complex.	Low	0-250m
MSF44902	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Sprott's Farm	Sprott's Farm, Polstead. 19th century farmstead and 18th century farmhouse with converted buildings. Dispersed multi-yard plan formed by working agricultural buildings. The farmhouse is attached to the agricultural range. Partial loss (less than 50%) of the traditional farm complex.	Low	0-250m
MSF44891	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Holt Farm	Holt Farm, Polstead. 19th century farmstead and farmhouse. Regular courtyard full plan formed by working agricultural buildings. The farmhouse is attached to the agricultural range. The farmstead has been totally demolished. Located within an isolated position.	Low	Within
MSF25285	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: High Trees Farm	High Trees Farm, Polstead. 18th century farmstead and farmhouse. Regular courtyard U-shaped plan formed by working agricultural buildings, with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is set away from the yard. Significant loss (over 50%) of the traditional farm complex.	Low	0-250m
MSF43574	MONUMENT	Green, Polstead	Green visible on Hodskinson's Map of 1783.	Low	0-250m
MSF18902	MONUMENT	Bushy Park Wood	Ancient Woodland.	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF18901	MONUMENT	Broom Hill	Ancient Woodland.	Low	Within
MSF5675	MONUMENT	Flint axe, grey, partly polished.	Flint axe, grey, partly polished.	No value	Within
MSF44890	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Nurstead Farm	Nurstead Farm, Polstead. 19th century farmstead and 16th century farmhouse. Regular courtyard full plan formed by working agricultural buildings. The farmhouse is set away from the yard. Partial loss (less than 50%) of the traditional farm buildings.	Low	Within
MSF5671	MONUMENT	Whitestreet Green	Belgic cremation cemetery found in `gravel pit' in 1926.	No value	0-250m
MSF5670	MONUMENT	Many black patches with pottery	Many black patches with pottery.	No value	0-250m
MSF11886	MONUMENT	Scatter of tile and metalwork found at E end of cropmark features	Scatter of tile and metalwork found at the eastern end of cropmark features.	No value	0-250m
MSF5673	MONUMENT	Part of rectangular enclosure.	Part of rectangular enclosure.	Low	0-250m
MSF28301	MONUMENT	Undated ditch and post-medieval knife, Land at Hill Farm Evaluation, Brick Kiln Hill, Boxford	Evaluation identified a single undated ditch and a post-medieval / modern knife.	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF44315	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Harrow Street Farm	Harrow Street Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard multi-yard plan with U-plan, and L-plan elements and additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard.	Low	0-250m
MSF44889	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Hill Farm	Hill Farm, Polstead. 19th century farmstead and farmhouse. Regular courtyard full plan formed by working agricultural buildings. The farmhouse is set away from the yard. Total change to the farmstead layout. Located within an isolated position.	Low	Within
MSF44316	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Heath Farm	Heath Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard L-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF44316	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Heath Farm	Heath Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard L-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF44318	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Vince's Farm	Vince's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a parallel plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set side on to the yard. The farmstead sits alongside a public road in a hamlet location.	Low	0-250m
MSF43446	MONUMENT	Leavenheath	Monument visible on Hodskinson's Map of 1783.	Low	Within
MSF5701	MONUMENT	Findspot of a Bronze- Age stone axe- hammer.	Stone axe-hammer, Ashbee Type I.	No value	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF34601	MONUMENT	Leaven Hall	Possible moated site with 15th or 16th century house on central platform.	Medium	0-250m
MSF44312	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Leaden Hall (Leaven Hall)	Leaden Hall is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard U-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a private track in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF42331	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Adams Well Farm	Adams Well Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a dispersed plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location. There has been a partial	Low	Within
MSF44313	FARMSTEAD	Outfarm: Unnamed Outfarm	An unnamed outfarm is visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farm is laid out in a regular courtyard U-plan. The farm sits along a private track in an isolated location. This outfarm has been completely lost.	Low	0-250m
MSF42334	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Assington House	Assington House is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard full plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road.	Low	0-250m
MSF18179	MONUMENT	Leadenhall Wood	Ancient woodland.	Low	Within
MSF44309	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Greens Farm	Greens Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard L-plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF42330	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Shamrock Farm (Warren's Farm)	Warren's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a loose courtyard plan. The farmhouse is detached and set side on to the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location. This original farmstead survives.	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF42328	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Woodthorpe's Farm	Woodthorpe's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular F-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within
MSF20148	MONUMENT	Cuckoo Field	Field name suggests possible pagan place.	Low	Within
MSF15620	MONUMENT	Hawkins Mill (1837); Assington Mill (1926); Mill Farm (1977)	A water mill is recorded in the Domesday Survey at Assington in 1086.	Low	0-250m
MSF42324	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Mill Farm (Assington Mill)	Assington Mill is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a loose courtyard plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a private track in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF42329	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Society Farm	Society Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular full plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is attached to the agricultural range. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	0-250m
MSF42327	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Pump Farm	Pump Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular L-plan. The farmhouse is detached and set gable end on to the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location. Only the farmhouse remains from the original farm complex.	Low	Within
MSF35233	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Moor's Farm	Moor's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard L-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated location.	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF42326	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Dansey's Farm	Dansey's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular L-plan. The farmhouse is detached and set side on to the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in a loose farmstead cluster.	Low	0-250m
MSF42325	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Hick's Farm	Hick's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular L-plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in a loose farmstead cluster. Only the farmhouse remains from the original farm complex.	Low	0-250m
MSF15618	MONUMENT	Post Medieval brick kiln.	Kiln or cottage (or cottage named `Kiln Cottage') and premises on tithe map and apportionment of 1837.	Low	0-250m
MSF15622	MONUMENT	Assington Thicks	Part of Ancient Woodland now known as Assington Thicks.	Low	0-250m
MSF42322	FARMSTEAD	Fieldbarn: Unnamed Fieldbarn	An unnamed fieldbarn is visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The barn sits along a private track in an isolated location. This barn has been converted for residential use.	Low	0-250m
MSF15716	MONUMENT	Dorking Tye	Dorking Tye.	Low	Within
MSF42323	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Dorking Tye Farm	Dorking Tye Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular L-plan with additional detached elements. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits along a public road in an isolated	Low	Within
MSF15621	MONUMENT	Birch Avery	Area of Birch Avery, formerly part of larger Ancient Woodland (as shown on Hodskinson's 1783 map) known as Assington Thicks.	Low	0-250m
MSF15717	MONUMENT	Dorking Tye	Farmstead with two buildings (one probably a porched barn) shown on the west side of `Dorking Tye' in 1817, now gone.	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF42437	FARMSTEAD	Outfarm: Stanton's Barn	Stanton's Barn is an outfarm visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farm is laid out in a regular U-plan and sits along a public road in an isolated location. There has been a partial loss of working buildings with large modern sheds on site and a farmhouse.	Low	0-250m
MSF19522	FINDSPOT	Dorking Tye Footpath, Bures St Mary, (Palaeolithic).	Handaxe.	No value	Within
MSF18175	MONUMENT	Appletree Wood	Ancient woodland.	Low	0-250m
MSF44354	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Yorley Farm	Yorley Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular courtyard U-plan. The farmhouse is detached and set gable on to the yard. The farmstead sits alongside a public road in a loose farmstead cluster.	Low	0-250m
MSF42438	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Dupont's Farm	Dupont's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular U-plan and sits alongside a public road in an isolated location. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard.	Low	0-250m
MSF18675	MONUMENT	Sayers Tye; Sawyers Farm	Small former green or tye, formerly known as 'Sayers Tye'.	Low	0-250m
MSF18799	FINDSPOT	Findspot of an Anglo Saxon bronze disc brooch decorated with sunken cross.	Metal detected bronze disc brooch decorated with sunken cross with expanded terminals containing degraded enamel.	No value	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF25413	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Sawyer's Farm	Sawyer's Farm is a farmstead visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a regular full plan with the farmhouse detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits alongside a private track in an isolated location. Only the farmhouse remains from the original farm complex.	Low	Within
MSF17968	FINDSPOT	Medieval artefact scatter of metalwork, including a plain bronze circular harness pendant and bronze annular brooch	Metal detector finds of plain bronze circular harness pendant and bronze annular brooch.	No value	0-250m
MSF17967	FINDSPOT	Findspot of an Iron- Age gold quarter stater of Cunobelin	Metal detector find of gold quarter stater of Cunobelin.	No value	0-250m
MSF14847	FINDSPOT	Findspot of a copper alloy 'awl' with relatively blunt, pointed ends, of unknown date.	Copper alloy 'awl' with relatively blunt, pointed ends.	No value	Within
MSF43635	MONUMENT	Workhouse Green, Little Cornard	Village green visible on Hodskinson's Map of 1783.	Low	0-250m
MSF44352	FARMSTEAD	Farmstead: Unnamed Farmstead	An unnamed farmstead is visible on the 1st Ed OS map. The farmstead is laid out in a dispersed plan. The farmhouse is detached and set away from the yard. The farmstead sits alongside a public road in a hamlet location. This farmstead survives intact.	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF32635	FINDSPOT	Medieval metalwork scatter	Findspot, gilded harness pendant, clasp, silver penny, stud and mount.	No value	0-250m
MSF18819	FINDSPOT	Findspot of an Anglo- Saxon strap end.	Metal detector find of 9 th century strap-end.	No value	0-250m
MSF14417	FINDSPOT	Medieval artefact scatter including a small oval buckle, bronze dagger chape and a casting of a human bust in pewter. (Med)	Metal detector finds: one small round/oval buckle; bronze dagger chape, probably C15 or C16; Med or later casting of human bust in pewter, with rough knob at base for attachment, larger and heavier than pilgrim's badge.	No value	Within
MSF14418	FINDSPOT	Anglo-Saxon artefact scatter of silver penny fragments of Edmund Memorial coin. (Sax)	Silver penny fragments of Edmund Memorial coin.	No value	Within
MSF5710	MONUMENT	Rectangular enclosure of unknown date.	Rectangular enclosure.	Low	Within
MSF5708	MONUMENT	Ring ditch of unknown date.	Ring ditch, circa 20m in diameter.	Low	0-250m
MEX30109	MONUMENT	Near Grasmere Farm	Cropmarks including ring ditches and rectangular enclosure.	Medium	Within
MEX29558	MONUMENT	East side of Lamarsh	Cropmarks of at least one ring ditch in the field to the east of the railway at TL 894536 and at least two other, smaller ones in the field west of the railway.	Low	Within
MEX29728	FINDSPOT	East of Lamarsh	Flint implements.	No value	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MEX40805	FINDSPOT	Parish Church of the Holy Innocents, Lamarsh	A watching brief carried out on 17/8/95 noted one piece of Roman tile visible at the western end of the church.	No value	0-250m
MEX30154 AIM Site 1	MONUMENT	Hill Farm House	Extensive cropmark complex comprising: one ring-ditch with central cross-trees, Earthworks features, pits and block marks.	Medium	Within
MEX29828	MONUMENT	Moat Farm	Homestead moat.	Medium	0-250m
MEX30037	MONUMENT	South end of Alphamstone village	Mid-1st century site.	Low	0-250m
MEX1031685	MONUMENT	Lamarsh	Cropmarks of rectangular enclosure	Low	Within
MEX29851	MONUMENT	East of 'The Windmill', Alphamstone	Site of windmill.	Low	0-250m
MEX29882	MONUMENT	Abbots (formerly Ivy Cottages)	Fragmentary moat.	Low	0-250m
MEX30059	FINDSPOT	Gravel workings survey anomaly at Alphamstone	The scraper was made on a waste flake with cortex on one side.	No value	Within
MEX30065	MONUMENT	Alphamstone gravel workings	During pit inspection in advance of gravel extraction at ARC gravel pit in 1974 the pit manager mentioned that a tile kiln (which was still remembered by an old man in the area) was uncovered at an earlier phase of working in the same pit.	No value	Within
MEX29835	FINDSPOT	Church of St Mary, Great Henny	Roman brick used randomly in the fabric.	No value	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MEX29891	MONUMENT	Area east of Kings Farm, Alphamstone	Estate map of 1760 shows `Kiln Field' as a field name, with an earlier moated site.	Low	Within
MEX1033357	MONUMENT	Features near Great Henny Church	Medieval features, including a pit and probable beam slot and floor surface recorded along the route of a new water main pipeline	Low	0-250m
MEX1033356	MONUMENT	Features near Great Henny Church	Two Roman features and Roman finds recorded along the route of a new water main pipeline.	Low	0-250m
MEX29864	MONUMENT	Church of St John the Evangelist, Great Henny	Church of St John the Evangelist. There is a large sarsen just outside the southeast corner of the graveyard.	Low	0-250m
MEX29858	MONUMENT	Old Twinstead Hall	The Old Twinstead Hall was built by Isaac Wincol in Queen Elizabeth I's reign and was demolished in 1900.	Low	0-250m
MEX1031686	MONUMENT	Twinstead	Cropmarks of former field boundaries	Low	0-250m
MEX30080	MONUMENT	Pelham Hall	Possible moated site.	Medium	0-250m
MEX1031722	MONUMENT	Bulmer	Cropmarks of former field boundaries- some depicted on OS 1st edition sheet 12	Low	Within
MEX39468	MONUMENT	Cropmarks E of Little Maplestead	Cropmarks of field boundaries - some depicted on OS 1st edition sheet.	Low	0-250m
MEX1031720	MONUMENT	Cropmarks, Wickham St Paul	Cropmarks of field boundaries, mainly depicted on OS 1st edition	Low	Within
MEX1040463	MONUMENT	Parks Farm	Field boundaries	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MEX30152	MONUMENT	West of Bullocks Hole Farm	Cropmarks of linear features (some of which are almost certainly old field boundaries) and pits.	Low	0-250m
MEX1031729	MONUMENT	Wickham St Paul	Cropmarks of field boundaries, most on OS 1st edition.	Low	Within
MEX30074	MONUMENT	Oak Farm	Possible moated site.	Medium	0-250m
MEX30067	MONUMENT	Copey Farm	Possible moated site.	Medium	Within
MEX30148	MONUMENT	All Saints churchyard, Wickham St Paul	There is a large, low mound in the centre of the graveyard, which might possibly be a barrow (note; the church is displaced toward the north of the graveyard).	Medium	Within
MEX29824	MONUMENT	Site of windmill North of Wickham Hall	Site of windmill.	Low	0-250m
MEX1031728	MONUMENT	Wickham St Paul- Gestingthorpe	Cropmarks of field boundaries: most are depicted on OS 1st edition 6" sheet 12	Low	0-250m
MEX29949	MONUMENT	South of Wickham Hall	Soil marks of huts. 1st to 4th century AD pot scatter.	Low	Within
HER Line data	1				
MSF28976	MONUMENT	Hadleigh Railway, disused branch line	Disused branch railway line from Hadleigh to Bentley. The railway opened in 1847, closed for passengers in 1932 and closed for freight in 1965.	Low	Within
MSF44821	MONUMENT	River Stour Navigation	Improvements to River Stour to make it navigable.	Low	Within
MSF44892	MONUMENT	Possible section of the Roman road	One likely and one possible section of the Roman road running north of Colchester to Great Horkesley, that have been suggested as forming part of a route running north-north-east.	Low	Within
MSF18196	MONUMENT	Sawyers Road	Medieval routeway known as Sawyers Road.	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF35002	MONUMENT	Stour Valley Railway Line (Great Eastern Railway)	Stour Valley Railway Line. Opened between 1849 and 1865. Parts are still open.	Low	Within
MSF44878	MONUMENT	Line of Roman road running from Chelmsford to lxworth	Unmistakeably Roman because of the long straight stretches of modern road Chelmsford - Little Waltham, Little Waltham - Gosfield) and lesser stretches (Bradfield Combust, Rushbrooke, Pakenham) which appear on early maps.	Low	Within
MSF35002	MONUMENT	Stour Valley Railway Line (Great Eastern Railway)	Stour Valley Railway Line. Opened between 1849 and 1865. Parts are still open.	Low	Within
MEX30045	MONUMENT	Byham Hall and NNE direction	Inferred course of Roman road forming part of a route from Chelmsford to Ixworth, Suffolk.	Low	Within
HER point da	ata				
MSF14276	FINDSPOT	Post Medieval artefact scatter of pottery, brick and tile fragments	Scatter of post-medieval pottery sherds, fine-combed ware, white brick, peg tile fragments etc.	No value	0-250m
MSF14277	FINDSPOT	Medieval artefact scatter of pottery, including a body sherd of coarseware	Body sherd of medieval coarseware.	No value	0-250m
MSF21474	FINDSPOT	Findspot of a Bronze- Age sword and socketed axe or chisel fragments.	Sword and small socketed axe/chisel fragments, probably from hoard.	No value	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF21711	FINDSPOT	Prehistoric artefact scatter of 6 flints	Six flints found whilst surface walking. Five probably natural or agricultural in origin, one probably BA or later.	No value	0-250m
MSF32832	FINDSPOT	Near College Farm Cottages, Hintlesham, (Prehistoric)	Flint scraper found on edge of track	No value	Within
MSF14631	FINDSPOT	Findspot of a Medieval copper alloy weight	Copper alloy weight, from a nest of dished weights, has ring and dot decoration all around rim.	No value	0-250m
MSF32945	FINDSPOT	Hammered silver half- groat and silver long cross penny	Hammered silver half-groat and silver long cross penny	No value	0-250m
MSF6849	FINDSPOT	Findspot of Roman samian pottery sherds	Samian pottery sherds found in a field during tree planting circa 1940 to the south of the Hadleigh/Hintlesham Road between Kate's Hill Farm and California.	No value	Within
MSF24624	MONUMENT	Mill Field, Hadleigh (Tithe Map)	Field shown on tithe map under the name of Mill Field, suggesting the location of a past Mill in the immediate area. Numbered 1147 in Tithe Apportionment. TM 0548 4180.	Low	0-250m
MSF1276	FINDSPOT	Overbury Hall	At a meeting in Hadleigh, October 1857, the following was exhibited: "a bag of silver coins, nearly 1000 in number, from the reigns of Queen Elizabeth I, James I, Charles I, and the Commonwealth, found in 1856, at Overbury Hall, Langham".	No value	0-250m
MSF18259	MONUMENT	Kiln Field; Kiln Meadow	Kiln site suggested by field names `Kiln Field' and `Kiln Meadow'.	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF21457	MONUMENT	Burnt House Field	Approximate location of Burnt House suggested by field name 'Burnt House Field".	Low	0-250m
MSF5682	FINDSPOT	Neolithic polished grey flint axe, Mussteads	Polished grey flint axe found during hoeing of sugar beet on the Mussteads.	No value	Within
MSF30254	MONUMENT	Undated oaks from a possible wooden structure at The Nussteads	Undated oaks from a possible wooden structure at The Nussteads.	Low	0-250m
MSF11783	FINDSPOT	Coin of Diocletian (AD 297-307)	Coin of Diocletian (AD 297-307) found metal detecting.	No value	0-250m
MSF34021	FINDSPOT	Scatter of Medieval and Post Medieval coin scatter	Scatter of Medieval and Post Medieval coin scatter.	No value	0-250m
MSF31510	FINDSPOT	Late Neolithic to Late Bronze Age flints	Surface finds of Late Neolithic to Late Bronze Age flints.	No value	0-250m
MSF15625	MONUMENT	Site of post-medieval post mill	The site of an open trestle type post-medieval post mill.	Low	0-250m
MSF24495	MONUMENT	Kedge's wood; Warren Cottage, Tiger Hill	Banks surviving in Tiger Hill Nature Reserve.	Low	0-250m
MSF13370	MONUMENT	Possible medieval road with substantial ditches and banks	Medieval road (now track) with substantial ditches and banks.	Medium	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF32572	FINDSPOT	Medieval copper alloy buckle and post- medieval copper alloy weight	Medieval copper alloy buckle and post-medieval copper alloy weight.	No value	0-250m
MSF14464	FINDSPOT	Findspot of a Medieval bronze seal matrix	Bronze seal matrix, flat pointed oval shape with suspension loop.	No value	0-250m
MSF15334	MONUMENT	Dedmans hill field (tithe)	`Dedmans hill field' named on Little Cornard tithe apportionment of 1842. The name suggests burial mound or possible gallows.	Low	Within
MSF14678	FINDSPOT	Findspot of a Medieval silvercut half-penny of William I of Scotland	Metal detector find.	No value	0-250m
MEX30040	FINDSPOT	East of Boutell's Farm	Red pot found while ploughing, 1936.	No value	Within
MEX30042	FINDSPOT	Lamarsh Hal	Conglomerate quernstone found 1965 by AG Ingram, Lamarsh Hall, Bures.	No value	Within
MEX29493	FINDSPOT	Near Lamarsh Hall	Polished stone axe found near Lamarsh Hall.	No value	Within
MEX29838	MONUMENT	Church of St Mary, Great Henny	The church was restored in the 19 th century when the east wall was rebuilt and the north vestry and transepts added.	Low	Within
MEX1033362	FINDSPOT	Stretch of water mains pipeline from Lodge Farm to Little Hickbush	Watching brief along the water mains replacement pipeline revealed a small number of archaeological features and scatters.	No value	Within
MEX29611	FINDSPOT	North of Wickham Hall	Roman pottery found in 1956, 170 yards north-east of the church.	No value	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MEX1032895	MONUMENT	Milestone on B1058	18 th and 19 th century milestone marked London and Castle Hedingham. The distances are illegible.	Low	Within
AIM data					
AIM Site 9	EARTHWORKS	N/A	Earthworks of a possible irregular enclosure or platform of unknown date within College Grove woods. The ditch is incomplete.	Low	0-250m
AIM Site 8	EARTHWORKS	N/A	These earthworks comprise the cropmarks of a large circular enclosure that has been truncated by a modern road, immediately east of AIM Site 7. The AIM report (ECC, 2021b) notes that, 'The positioning of a circular enclosure in proximity to both a possible round barrow and mortuary enclosure suggests it could be contemporary and is very similar to examples in Essex such as Rivenhall and Feering'.	High	Within
AIM Site 10	EARTHWORKS	N/A	Earthworks of a possible incomplete enclosure within Ramsey Wood. The enclosure has an internal bank, but neither the ditch nor bank are visible on the north-east side, although it appears to be cut by a modern boundary. An earthwork ditch with a low-level bank is attached to the north-west corner of the enclosure. Elsewhere in the wood is a sinuous boundary bank and ditch which is broken by modern boundaries, so it is assumed this earthwork is earlier in date.	Low	0-250m
AIM Site 5	CROPMARK	N/A	Cropmarks of an enclosure of a possible prehistoric date that has been truncated by a modern road was mapped during the 2012 project, additional field boundaries, that are marked on the 1st edition OS mapping of the 1880s were mapped in 2021 in the vicinity of the enclosure.	Medium	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
AIM Site 11	EARTHWORKS	N/A	Earthworks of a possible medieval moated site. The earthwork that forms the U-shaped enclosure is still visible in the modern field system. The Suffolk HER suggests that this site is likely to have been a park keeper's lodge and is set within a medieval deer park.	Medium	Within
AIM Site C1	CROPMARK	N/A	A cropmark which also features on the National Monuments Record as a field boundary.	Low	Within
AIM Site 12	EARTHWORKS	N/A	Earthworks of possible fields/paddocks along the River Brett. Some of the ditches run towards the river and may be associated with drainage and water management within the flood plain.	Low	0-250m
AIM Site 18	CROPMARK	N/A	Cropmarks of a possible incomplete enclosure and field boundaries of a probable medieval date. The site is located within an area of building rubble recorded on the Suffolk HER.	Medium	0-250m
AIM Site 7 MSF38093	CROPMARK	N/A	This site incorporates the potential Neolithic long barrow feature (MSF38093), but also a number of other potentially associated cropmarks including a possible incomplete small circular enclosure, a possible round barrow (although there is the potential that this is a former pond), and field boundaries.	High	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
AIM Site 13	EARTHWORKS	N/A	Earthworks of an undated small sub-square moat. The Suffolk HER suggests the moat "surrounds a small square island with possible central square unroofed building shown on 1880s OS map together with square (fish?) pond immediately to south", however this island cannot be identified on either the lidar or aerial photographs (possibly due to tree cover). The site is part of Overbury Hall complex which, in the medieval period, was a sub-manor of Layham (absorbed by main manor in 1577). The Suffolk HER also states that the moat is not marked on the Tithe map, merely two rectangular ponds which suggests either the Tithe mapping is incorrect, or moat and structure were constructed between 1839 and 1880s.	Medium	0-250m
AIM Site 14	EARTHWORKS	N/A	Earthwork possibly denoting a ditch or a dam.	Low	Within and 0- 250m
AIM Site E2	CROPMARK	N/A	A cropmark denoting a possible enclosure.	Low	0-250m and 250m-1km
AIM Site 4	CROPMARK	N/A	Cropmarks of a trackway of an unknown date, there are further cropmarks of former field boundaries although these are not marked on the 1st edition OS mapping of the 1880s.	Low	Within and 0- 250m
AIM E3	CROPMARK	N/A	Cropmarks denoting a possible enclosure boundary.	Low	250m-1km
AIM Site 15	EARTHWORKS	N/A	An Earthwork interpreted from Lidar data – indeterminate function.	Low	Within
AIM Site 16	EARTHWORKS	N/A	An earthwork interpreted from Lidar of indeterminate function.	Low	Within
AIM Site 3	CROPMARK	N/A	Cropmarks of former field boundaries forming part of a field system, some of these features are visible on the 1st edition OS mapping of the 1880s but may have much earlier origins.	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
AIM Site 2	CROPMARK	N/A	Cropmarks of a possible rectangular enclosure of an unknown date that has been truncated by the railway line. 325m to the north-west are further possible incomplete enclosures. Other cropmarks in the vicinity include of former field boundaries many of which are visible on the 1st edition OS mapping of the 1880s but may have earlier origins.	Low	Within and 0- 250m
AIM Site 6	CROPMARK	N/A	Cropmarks of former field boundary visible on the 1st edition OS mapping of the 1880s but may have much earlier origins.	Low	0-250m
AIM Site 17	EARTHWORKS	N/A	An earthwork interpreted from Lidar data as representing an enclosure.	Low	0-250m
AIM Linear A	nomalies				
AIM 38	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 35	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 34	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 39	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 33	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 40	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 32	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 41	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 48	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 47	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
AIM 30	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 29	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 28	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 44	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 23	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 22	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 21	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 19	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 20	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	Within
AIM 36	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	0-250m
AIM 37	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	0-250m
AIM 45	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	0-250m
AIM 31	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	0-250m
AIM 42	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	0-250m
AIM 43	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	0-250m
AIM 46	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	0-250m
AIM 25	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	0-250m

Reference	Asset Type	Name	Summary Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
AIM 26	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	0-250m
AIM 27	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	250m-1km
AIM 49	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	250m-1km
AIM 24	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	250m-1km
AIM 17	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	250m-1km
AIM 14	CROPMARK	N/A	The line of a former field boundary	Low	250m-1km

3. Built Heritage Assets

3.1 Conservation Areas

Conservation area information has been acquired from the relevant planning authority for a study area 3km from the Order Limits. These have been reproduced in Table 3.1 and are shown on ES Figure 8.2: Built Heritage Assets (application document 6.4).

Table 3.1 – Conservation Areas

Name	Assigned Asset Value	Distance from Order Limits
Hadleigh	Medium	250m-1km
Polstead	Medium	250m-1km
Stoke-by-Nayland	Medium	1km-3km
Boxford	Medium	1km-3km
Bures St Mary	Medium	1km-3km
Bures Hamlet	Medium	1km-3km
Sudbury	Medium	1km-3km
Pebmarsh	Medium	1km-3km
Bulmer	Medium	1km-3km

3.2 Listed Buildings

Listed building data was acquired for the Order Limits and a 3km study area around these. The 3km study area was chosen as a sufficiently large enough area to capture buildings potentially affect through changes to setting. The listed buildings are listed in Table 3.2 and shown on ES Figure 8.2: Built Heritage Assets (**application document 6.4**) along with their NHLE ID. The table identifies their value and an approximate distance from the Order Limits to give an approximate idea as to the asset's proximity to the project without

- having to cross refer to the figures. The asset names (often with locational summaries) in Table 3.2 are reproduced verbatim as from the Historic England data and do not always conform with the style present throughout this document.
- There is only one listed building within the Order Limits, Gatepiers, Gates and Railings To Hintlesham Hall (1036916) which is Grade II listed. The Open Source data from the NHLE (Historic England, 2022), records Abbott's Farmhouse (NHLE ID 1122866) inside the Order Limits at National Grid Reference (NGR) 586994, 234783. A site visit has shown that this is marked in the incorrect location in the Open Source data and is correctly located at NGR586885, 234854, outside of the Order Limits. Figure 8.2: Built Heritage Assets (application document 6.4) shows the listed building in the correct location as recorded during the site visit.

Table 3.2 – Listed Buildings

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1033263	II	Bullenhall Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1033264	II	3 and 5 Church Lane	High	1km-3km
1033382	II	Shelley Lodge	High	1km-3km
1033383	II	Chapel House	High	1km-3km
1033384	II	Shelley House	High	1km-3km
1033385	II	Wall And Gateway Attached To East Of Northern Range, Shelley Hall	High	1km-3km
1033386	II	Shelley Priory	High	1km-3km
1033387	II	Sparrows Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1033404	II	Threeways	High	1km-3km
1033405	I	Little Wenham Castle	High	1km-3km
1033406	II	Garden Wall Approximately 20m North West Of Little Wenham Castle	High	1km-3km
1033407	II	Wenham Lodge	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1033408	II	Cartlodge Adjacent To Road And Approximately 30m North West Of Wenham Lodge	High	1km-3km
1033409	II	Wenham Grange	High	1km-3km
1033410	I	Church Of St Lawrence, Formerly Church Of All Saints	High	1km-3km
1033411	II	Beckett's Barn Cottage	High	1km-3km
1033412	II	Outbuilding, probably a former bakehouse/brewhouse, approximately 4m South East of Shelley Dairy	High	1km-3km
1033413	II	Cartlodge Adjacent To South Of Barn Listed 2/91 And Approximately 20 M South Of Shelley Dairy	High	1km-3km
1033414	II	Barn Approximately 20 M North West Of Shelley Dairy	High	1km-3km
1033434	II	Barn Approximately 30 M South West Of Jermyns Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1033460	II	Portico To Former Tendering Hall	High	1km-3km
1033461	II	Hynards Cottage	High	250m-1km
1033464	II	Stonicott	High	250m-1km
1033465	II	Moat Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1033466	II	Barn And Cart Shed 60m North West Of Wissington Grove	High	1km-3km
1033474	II	Barn To South Of Scotland Hall	High	1km-3km
1033475	II	Thatchers Cottage	High	1km-3km
1033476	II	Homestead	High	1km-3km
1033477	II	Lilac Cottages	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1033478	II	Honeycroft	High	1km-3km
1033479	II	Cherry Trees	High	1km-3km
1033480	II	Oak Beams	High	1km-3km
1033481	II	Outbuilding To Bishops	High	1km-3km
1033482	II	Maltings Cottage	High	1km-3km
1033483	II	Louies Cottage	High	250m-1km
1033484	II	Cobbs Cottage	High	250m-1km
1033485	II	Well House	High	1km-3km
1033493	II	Brick House	High	1km-3km
1033494	II	Green Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1033495	II	Barn To The North Of Green Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1033496	II	Thatched Cottage East	High	1km-3km
1033497	II	Hill House	High	1km-3km
1033498	II	Garden Wall To Hill House	High	1km-3km
1033499	II	Shaddelows Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1033503	II	Crown Cottages	High	1km-3km
1033504	II	The Crown Inn	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1033505	II	Park Street Stores	High	1km-3km
1033506	II	Park Street Cottages	High	1km-3km
1033507	II	Outbuilding At The Rear Of The Cottage	High	1km-3km
1033508	II	Black Horse Inn	High	1km-3km
1033509	II	Assur	High	1km-3km
1033510	II	7-12, Polstead Street	High	1km-3km
1033511	II	The Stables	High	1km-3km
1033512	II	Alde House	High	1km-3km
1033513	*	The Maltings	High	1km-3km
1033514	II	Lavender Cottage	High	1km-3km
1033515	II	Drift Cottage	High	1km-3km
1033516	II	Mead House	High	1km-3km
1033517	II	Lower Fen	High	1km-3km
1033518	II	Hillside	High	1km-3km
1033519	II	Dovecote Immediately North East Of Scotland Place	High	1km-3km
1033532	II	Poplar Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1033533	II	Dovecote At Giffords Hall	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1033536	II	The Old Vicarage	High	1km-3km
1033537	II	Beech Cottages	High	1km-3km
1033538	*	Street House	High	1km-3km
1033539	II	Old Reading Room	High	1km-3km
1033540	II	Tudor Cottages	High	1km-3km
1033541	II	The Downs Almshouses	High	1km-3km
1033542	II	Houses About 24 Yards North East Of The Downs Almshouses	High	1km-3km
1033546	II	Brooks Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1033547	II	Stow	High	1km-3km
1033548	II	Crojons	High	1km-3km
1033549	II	Potash	High	1km-3km
1033550	II	Burchetts	High	1km-3km
1033551	II	The Old Rectory	High	1km-3km
1033580	II	11 And 13, Stoke Road	High	1km-3km
1033581	II	Thatch Cottage	High	1km-3km
1033582	II	Hurrel's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1033594	II	Goody's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1033595	II	Thatched Cottage	High	1km-3km
1036557	II	Stone Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1036558	II	Mere House	High	1km-3km
1036559	II	Burnthouse Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1036560	II	Village Hall	High	250m-1km
1036561	II	Spout Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1036562	II	Stakers	High	250m-1km
1036563	II	Pond Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1036598	II	Honey Tye Cottage And Cottage Adjoining	High	250m-1km
1036599	II	Harrrow Street Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1036600	*	Honey Hall	High	250m-1km
1036601	II	Rosehill Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1036602	II	Outbuildings Formerly To Costen's Hall	High	250m-1km
1036624	II	Greys Hall	High	1km-3km
1036625	II	Barn At Greys Hall	High	1km-3km
1036626	II	Little Greys	High	1km-3km
1036627	II	1 And 2, Mill Tye	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036628	II	Mill House	High	1km-3km
1036629	II	Prospect Hill Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1036632	II	Cloggs Hall Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1036633	II	Flemings	High	1km-3km
1036667	II	120, 122 And 124, Bures Road	High	1km-3km
1036668	II	Maynscroft And Maynscroft Cottage	High	1km-3km
1036669	II	Post Office	High	1km-3km
1036670	II	The Vicarage	High	1km-3km
1036671	II	Spout House	High	1km-3km
1036672	II	Angel Inn	High	1km-3km
1036673	II	Tudor Cottage And Shop	High	1km-3km
1036674	II	Baytree House	High	1km-3km
1036675	II	Junipers	High	1km-3km
1036676	II	Crown	High	1km-3km
1036677	*	Malthouse And Premises Occupied By W A Church (Bures) Ltd	High	1km-3km
1036678	II	Bures Baptist Church	High	1km-3km
1036679	II	Chapel Cottages	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036680	II	2-4, Nayland Road	High	1km-3km
1036681	II	5-7, Nayland Road	High	1km-3km
1036682	II	Bures Hall Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1036683	II	Malting Farm Cottage	High	1km-3km
1036684	*	Great Bevills	High	1km-3km
1036685	II	Barns To The North Of High Pale Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1036686	II	Allens Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1036687	*	Sawyer's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1036690	II	Shamrock Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1036691	II	Partridge Row	High	0-250m
1036692	II	Cootes Cottage	High	0-250m
1036693	II	Dorking Tye Cottage	High	0-250m
1036694	II	The Glebe House	High	1km-3km
1036695	II	Assington House	High	250m-1km
1036696	II	Dorking Tye House	High	0-250m
1036697	II	81, Dyers Lane	High	1km-3km
1036698	II	Home Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036699	II	The Old Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1036700	II	Farend	High	1km-3km
1036701	II	Shoulder Of Mutton Public House	High	250m-1km
1036702	II	Hollies Cottage	High	250m-1km
1036703	II	Hill Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1036704	II	The Stores	High	250m-1km
1036705	II	13-17, The Street	High	250m-1km
1036710	II	Stables To The North Of Smallbridge Hall	High	1km-3km
1036711	I	Church Of St Mary The Virgin	High	1km-3km
1036712	II	10, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1036713	II	2, Station Road	High	1km-3km
1036714	II	Kerseys Building	High	1km-3km
1036715	II	Stoneleigh	High	1km-3km
1036716	II	K6 Telephone Kiosk Outside The Old Post Office	High	1km-3km
1036733	I	Church Of St Edmund	High	1km-3km
1036734	II	Barn To The South Of Moor's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1036735	*	49, High Street	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036736	II	53, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036737	II	57 And 59, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036738	II	Milestone Obelisk Adjacent To Number 55 And At The Junction With Church Street	High	1km-3km
1036739	II	67-71, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036740	*	79-83, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036741	II	85, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036742	II	89, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036743	II	Tye House	High	1km-3km
1036744	*	97 And 99, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036745	II	Taviton House	High	1km-3km
1036746	*	Sun Court	High	1km-3km
1036747	II	111 And 113, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036748	II	121, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036749	II	123-129, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036750	II	The Lawns	High	1km-3km
1036751	II	Congregational Church	High	1km-3km
1036752	II	Sunday School And Meeting Hall (Formerly Congregational Day School)	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036753	II	Pump At South West Corner Of Town Hall	High	1km-3km
1036754	II	Toppesfield Hall (Urban District Council Offices)	High	1km-3km
1036755	II	Aldham Mill	High	1km-3km
1036756	II	1-9, Queen Street	High	1km-3km
1036757	*	46 And 48, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036758	II	50, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036759	II	54, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036760	II	Premises Occupied By Tooks (Wing On Return Rear of Number 56 Facing George Street)	High	1km-3km
1036761	II	60, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036762	II	68, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036763	II	76, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036764	II	78 And 80, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036765	II	84, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036766	II	86 And 88, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036767	II	96, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036768	II	Cherry Tree Cafe	High	1km-3km
1036769	II	102, 102a And 102b, High Street	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036770	II	Ashwood	High	1km-3km
1036771	II	106, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036772	II	114, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036773	II	120 And 122, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036774	II	Tring House	High	1km-3km
1036775	II	9, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036776	II	15, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036777	II	25 And 27, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036778	II	31, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036779	*	45 And 47, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036780	*	Toppesfield Bridge	High	1km-3km
1036781	II	9, Duke Street	High	1km-3km
1036782	II	Wilson's Malthouse	High	1km-3km
1036783	II	2, Duke Street	High	1km-3km
1036784	II	Baptist Chapel	High	1km-3km
1036785	*	28, George Street	High	1km-3km
1036786	*	East House	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036787	II	40 And 42, George Street	High	1km-3km
1036788	*	48, George Street	High	1km-3km
1036789	II	Methodist Chapel	High	1km-3km
1036790	II	3 And 5, George Street	High	1km-3km
1036791	II	15, George Street	High	1km-3km
1036792	II	The Old House	High	1km-3km
1036793	II	25, George Street	High	1km-3km
1036794	II	39-45, George Street	High	1km-3km
1036795	II	83-87, George Street	High	1km-3km
1036796	II	93-99, George Street	High	1km-3km
1036797	II	Chapel To Almshouses	High	1km-3km
1036798	II	6, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036799	II	14, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036800	II	28, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036801	II	30, High Street	High	1km-3km
1036802	*	Bank House And The White Lion Hotel	High	1km-3km
1036803	II	Outbuilding At Rear South Of Number 90 (The Manse)	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036804	*	92 And 94 Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1036805	II	96-100 Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1036806	II	110-118 Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1036807	II	124 And 126, Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1036808	II	130-134, Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1036809	II	Bridge Over The River Brett	High	1km-3km
1036810	II	1, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1036811	*	11 And 13, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1036812	*	15, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1036813	II	23, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1036814	II	2, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1036815	II	Outbuilding Next To And To East Of Number 2	High	1km-3km
1036816	II	Myholme	High	1km-3km
1036817	II	Wall On North Boundary Of Grounds Of The Castle	High	1km-3km
1036818	II	Shrub End	High	1km-3km
1036819	II	4, Church Street	High	1km-3km
1036820	I	Church Of St Mary	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036821	II	Old Bakehouse In Grounds Of Guildhall To Southwest	High	1km-3km
1036822	II	Front Wall Adjoining And To West Of The Guildhall	High	1km-3km
1036823	II	River View	High	1km-3km
1036824	II	Coram Street Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1036825	II	24, Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036826	II	34, 36 And 36a, Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036827	II	66 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036828	II	70 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036829	II	72 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036830	II	78-88 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036831	II	Eight Bells Inn	High	1km-3km
1036832	II	94 And 96 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036833	II	Malthouse	High	1km-3km
1036834	II	The Pink House	High	1km-3km
1036835	II	57 And 59 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036836	II	69 And 71 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036837	II	89 And 91 Angel Street	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036838	II	101 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036839	II	147, Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1036840	II	11, Benton Street	High	1km-3km
1036841	II	29, Benton Street	High	1km-3km
1036842	II	43, Benton Street	High	1km-3km
1036843	II	73 And 75, Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1036844	II	King's Arms Inn	High	250m-1km
1036845	II	125 And 127 Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1036846	II	Sideways	High	250m-1km
1036890	II	Cherry Cottage	High	1km-3km
1036892	II	Mill House	High	1km-3km
1036893	II	Rosemary Cottage And Hillside	High	1km-3km
1036894	II	The Orchards	High	1km-3km
1036895	II	Dairy Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1036896	II	Chaloners Cottage	High	1km-3km
1036897	II	The Grange	High	250m-1km
1036898	II	Birch House Farmhouse	High	0-250m

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036912	II	Manor Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1036913	II	Wood Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1036914	II	Old Post Office	High	250m-1km
1036915	II	Rose Cottage	High	0-250m
1036916	II	Gatepiers, Gates and Railings To Hintlesham Hall	High	Within
1036917	I	Hintlesham Hall	High	0-250m
1036918	*	Service Ranges, Stables, Former Coach House And Brewhouse Attached To Hintlesham Hall	High	0-250m
1036919	II	College Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1036920	II	Old Hall House	High	0-250m
1036921	II	Prync's Lodge	High	1km-3km
1036922	II	Sproughton Manor	High	1km-3km
1036923	II	1-4, Church Close	High	1km-3km
1036924	II	Barn Circa 20m south-east of Red House	High	1km-3km
1036925	II	Lower House And The Stores	High	1km-3km
1036926	II	Tithe Barn	High	1km-3km
1036927	II	Mill	High	1km-3km
1036928	II	Belstead House	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1036933	II	Copdock Lodge	High	1km-3km
1036947	II	Mulberry Hall	High	250m-1km
1036948	I	Church Of St Mary	High	250m-1km
1036949	II	Canes Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1036950	II	Burstall Hill Cottages	High	0-250m
1036951	II	Chattisham Place	High	250m-1km
1036952	II	Church Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1036953	II	Doves Cottage	High	0-250m
1036954	II	Mill Farm Cottage	High	0-250m
1036967	II	Valley House	High	1km-3km
1036968	II	Lodge To Spider Hall	High	1km-3km
1036969	II	Fox Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1036970	II	The Post Office And Adjoining Premises	High	1km-3km
1036971	II	Church Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1036972	II	Timbers	High	1km-3km
1036977	II	K6 Telephone Kiosk	High	1km-3km
1037000	II	Kersey Vale Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1037017	II	K6 Telephone Kiosk	High	1km-3km
1037040	II	Maria Martens Cottage	High	1km-3km
1037041	II	Cherry Tree Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1037042	II	The Thatch	High	1km-3km
1037043	II	Maritime	High	1km-3km
1037044	II	Park Lodge	High	1km-3km
1037045	II	Yew Tree Cottage	High	1km-3km
1037046	II	Bridge Cottages	High	1km-3km
1037047	II	Mill Cottage	High	1km-3km
1037048	II	White House Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1037049	*	Polstead Hall	High	250m-1km
1037050	II	The Rectory	High	1km-3km
1037051	II	Steps Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1037052	II	Polstead Ponds Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1037072	II	Tills Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1037073	II	Holmwood Cottages	High	250m-1km
1037075	II	The Cock Inn	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1037076	II	Hill House	High	250m-1km
1037077	II	White Hall	High	0-250m
1037078	II	The Cottage	High	250m-1km
1037079	II	Cobblers	High	250m-1km
1037080	II	Patch Cottage	High	250m-1km
1037081	II	Kings Bank	High	250m-1km
1037082	II	High Trees Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1037083	II	Bells Corner	High	1km-3km
1037136	II	Church Of St Andrew	High	0-250m
1037137	II	Mill House, Layham Mill	High	250m-1km
1037138	II	Layham Watermill	High	250m-1km
1037139	II	Popes Green Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1037140	II	Deaves Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1037141	II	Lots Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1037142	II	Rand's Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1037143	II	Layham House Cottage	High	0-250m
1037144	II	Marquis Cornwallis Inn	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1037145	II	The Cottage	High	0-250m
1037252	II	Lodge Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1037277	II	Twin Gables	High	1km-3km
1037278	II	Yew Tree Cottages	High	1km-3km
1037279	II	Rectory	High	1km-3km
1037280	II	The Chequers	High	1km-3km
1037316	II	Sherbourne Cottage	High	1km-3km
1037317	II	Juglans	High	1km-3km
1037318	II	Christmas House	High	1km-3km
1037320	II	Hill Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1037321	II	Eleys Cottage	High	1km-3km
1037365	II	16-20 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037366	II	22 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037367	II	26 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037368	II	34 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037369	II	40 And 42 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037370	II	Bridge House And Boxford Stores	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1037371	II	7 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037372	II	11 And 13 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037373	II	Swan Inn	High	1km-3km
1037374	II	Penn Cottage And The Old Castle House	High	1km-3km
1037375	II	Victoria Cottage	High	1km-3km
1037376	II	Commerce House	High	1km-3km
1037377	II	35 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037378	II	41 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037379	II	47, Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037380	II	Edwardstone Almshouses	High	1km-3km
1037381	II	The Cottage	High	250m-1km
1037388	II	2 And 4 Broad Street	High	1km-3km
1037389	*	The Fleece Hotel	High	1km-3km
1037390	II	12 And 14, Broad Street	High	1km-3km
1037391	II	Kemball House	High	1km-3km
1037392	II	Riverside House	High	1km-3km
1037393	II	The Maltings	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1037394	II	Sunny Bank	High	1km-3km
1037395	II	Fourways	High	250m-1km
1037396	I	Church Of St Mary	High	1km-3km
1037397	II	5, Church Street	High	1km-3km
1037398	II	The Old Chequers	High	1km-3km
1037399	II	13, Church Street	High	1km-3km
1037400	II	Cox Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1037401	II	6, Ellis Street	High	1km-3km
1037402	II	Rosalee	High	1km-3km
1037403	II	Riverhall	High	1km-3km
1037404	II	13, Stone Street	High	1km-3km
1037405	II	Glovers	High	1km-3km
1037406	II	The Little House	High	1km-3km
1037407	II	32 And 34, Stone Street	High	1km-3km
1037408	II	2 And 4 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1037438	I	Church Of St Mary	High	1km-3km
1037439	II	Aldham Hall	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1037440	II	Church Lane Cottage	High	1km-3km
1037441	II	Flemish House	High	1km-3km
1037442	II	Redhill Cottage	High	1km-3km
1037443	II	Yew Tree Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1037520	II	The King's Head Public House	High	1km-3km
1037521	II	The Transport Cafe	High	1km-3km
1037550	*	Ballingdon Hall	High	1km-3km
1037554	II	West House	High	1km-3km
1051965	II	2, 4, 6 And 8, Church Green	High	1km-3km
1096028	II	Mill Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1096060	II	Church Of Our Lady Immaculate And St Edmund King And Martyr With Attached Former Presbytery	High	1km-3km
1113275	II	Cemetery Lodge	High	1km-3km
1119683	II	Thomson's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1122282	II	Rectory Farm Barn Approx 7m North East Of House	High	250m-1km
1122283	II	Cottage Approximately 7m North Of The Pheasant Public House	High	1km-3km
1122284	II	Audley Cottage And Baytree House	High	1km-3km
1122285	II	Delvyn's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1122286	II	Parks Farm	High	250m-1km
1122287	II	Parkgate Farm Farm Outbuildings Approximately 90m West Of House	High	1km-3km
1122288	II	Odewells	High	1km-3km
1122289	II	Little Chelmshoe House Barn Approximately 14m North East Of House	High	1km-3km
1122290	II	Little Chelmshoe House wall adjacent to road enclosing yard between barn and outbuilding Qv 2/20	High	1km-3km
1122820	II	Collins Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1122821	II	Barn Approximately 25m North Of Dagworth Manor	High	0-250m
1122822	II	Garland's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1122823	II	Hunt's Hall Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1122824	II	Magnolia House	High	250m-1km
1122825	II	Barn Approximately 55m East Of Spoons Hall	High	1km-3km
1122826	II	Valiant's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1122827	II	Weaver's Cottage	High	1km-3km
1122828	II	The Willows	High	250m-1km
1122829	II	The King's Head Public House	High	1km-3km
1122830	II	The Manor House	High	1km-3km
1122831	II	Rectory Cottage	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1122832	II	Great Lengths	High	1km-3km
1122833	*	Marvel's Garden	High	1km-3km
1122841	II	Blacksmiths Cottage	High	1km-3km
1122842	*	Parsonage Hall	High	1km-3km
1122843	II	Baker's Hall	High	1km-3km
1122844	II	Fishpits	High	1km-3km
1122845	II	The Railway Maltings	High	1km-3km
1122846	II	16 And 18, Station Hill	High	1km-3km
1122847	II	The White House	High	1km-3km
1122848	II	Water Lane Cottage	High	1km-3km
1122849	II	Secretaries Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1122850	II	Barn Approximately 35m North Of Secretaries Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1122851	II	Chesnut House	High	250m-1km
1122852	II	Edgar's Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1122853	II	Valley Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1122854	II	Little Gables	High	0-250m
1122855	II	Barn Approximately 30m North West Of Hill Farmhouse, Bures Hamlet	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1122856	II	Daws Hall	High	0-250m
1122857	II	Boutell's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1122858	*	Round Hill House	High	0-250m
1122859	II	The Cottage	High	0-250m
1122865	1	Parish Church Of St Barnabas	High	250m-1km
1122866	II	Abbot's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1122867	II	Wall Approximately 20m South East Of Clees Hall	High	250m-1km
1122869	II	King's Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1122870	II	Pump Approximately 4m South East Of King's Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1122871	II	Unnamed House Approximately 220m North North West Of King's Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1122872	II	May Cottage	High	250m-1km
1122873	II	Barn Approximately North North West Of Lower Goulds Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1122874	II	Moorcot	High	0-250m
1122875	II	The Manor House	High	250m-1km
1122876	II	Caldecott	High	250m-1km
1122877	II	Heyes	High	250m-1km
1122878	II	Tudor Cottage	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1122879	II	Ferriers Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1122880	II	Bures Antiques	High	1km-3km
1122881	II	Newmans	High	1km-3km
1122932	II	Milestone On South Verge Approximately 40m West Of Pannels Ash Farm	High	1km-3km
1122933	II	Pannels Ash Farm, Barn Approximately 35m North West Of House	High	1km-3km
1122957	II	Great Lodge Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1123025	II	Deans Cottage	High	1km-3km
1123026	II	Gallants Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1123027	II	Leppingwells	High	1km-3km
1123028	II	Ivy Cottage	High	1km-3km
1123029	II	Bricks Farm Barn Approximately 50m North Of Cottage	High	250m-1km
1123030	II	The Leys Barn At End Of Track	High	1km-3km
1123031	II	Nether House Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1123032	II	Catley Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1123033	II	Oak Farm Barn Approximately 30m East Of House	High	0-250m
1123034	II	Brickwall Farm Barns Approximately 30m South West Of House And Adjoining Road	High	0-250m
1123035	II	Willow Tree Cottage	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1123036	II	Green View	High	0-250m
1123037	II	K6 Telephone Kiosk By Village Hall	High	1km-3km
1123048	II	Barratt's Hall	High	1km-3km
1123049	II	Wardens House	High	1km-3km
1123050	II	Wardens House Outbuilding Adjoining Road And Approximately 25m South West Of House	High	1km-3km
1123051	II	Shouldersticks Hall	High	1km-3km
1123052	II	Little Lodge	High	1km-3km
1123053	II	Mossings	High	1km-3km
1123054	II	Luckinghouse Farm Barn Approximately 45m North East Of House	High	1km-3km
1123055	II	Luckinghouse Farm Outbuilding Approximately 40m North East Of House	High	1km-3km
1123056	II	Cottage Approximately 120m South Of Brook And Croft Cottages	High	1km-3km
1123060	II	Little Maplestead Hall Barn Approximately 50m North West Of Hall	High	1km-3km
1123061	II	Little Maplestead Hall Garden Wall Adjoining Hall To West	High	1km-3km
1123062	II	The Cottage	High	250m-1km
1123063	II	Hurrells Farm Barn Approximately 50m North Of House	High	1km-3km
1123064	II	Woodertons Farm Barn At Rear Approximately 30m West Of House	High	1km-3km
1123065	II	School Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1123066	II	Foundry House	High	1km-3km
1123067	II	Moat Farm Barn Approximately 60m South East Of House	High	250m-1km
1123068	II	Moat Farm Dovecote Approximately 25m East Of House	High	250m-1km
1123069	II	Moat Farm Barn Approximately 100m South East Of House	High	250m-1km
1123070	II	Moat Farm Cart Lodge Approximately 130m South Of House	High	250m-1km
1123071	II	Seven Sisters Cottage	High	250m-1km
1123072	II	The Old Cottage	High	250m-1km
1123073	II	Crouch House	High	250m-1km
1123074	II	Nether Hall Farm Outbuildings Adjacent To Road And Approximately 50m North West Of Hall	High	1km-3km
1123076	II	By Road Cottage	High	1km-3km
1123077	II	Hill Farm Outbuilding Former Guild Hall Adjoining Barn To East Qv 2/43	High	1km-3km
1123078	I	Church Of St Mary The Virgin	High	1km-3km
1123079	II	Church Of St Mary The Virgin headstone approx. 10m east of east window and north of Item 4/77	High	1km-3km
1123080	II	Alveston Cottage	High	1km-3km
1123081	II	Tong Cottage	High	1km-3km
1123082	II	New Barn Barn Approximately 40m North Of House	High	1km-3km
1123083	II	Chelmshoe House Dovecote Approximately 110m North East Of House	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1123084	II	Ivy Cottage	High	1km-3km
1123087	II	Byham Hall Barn Approximately 40m North East Of Hall	High	250m-1km
1123172	II	Ashford Lodge Gatehouse	High	1km-3km
1123184	*	Baggarett's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1123256	II	Fenn Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1123257	II	Grove Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1123258	II	Meadowsweet Cottage	High	250m-1km
1123259	*	Parish Church Of St Mary	High	0-250m
1123260	II	Sheepcote Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1123261	II	Barn 60m South East Of Sheepcote Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1123262	II	Barn 40m South East Of Sheepcote Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1123263	II	Snells	High	250m-1km
1123264	II	The Old Rectory	High	250m-1km
1123265	II	Walnut Tree Cottage	High	0-250m
1123266	II	First Cottage, Putts, Tokelys And End Cottage	High	250m-1km
1123267	II	Mill House	High	1km-3km
1123268	II	The Thatched Cottage	High	0-250m

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1123269	II	Barn, 20m South West Of Gentry's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1123270	II	Ryes Hall	High	250m-1km
1123271	I	Church Of All Saints	High	1km-3km
1123272	II	Charity Cottage	High	0-250m
1123273	II	Barn 50m West Of Sparrows Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1123274	II	Churchyard Gate And Porch On Roadside Church Of St John The Evangelist	High	0-250m
1123275	II	Stables 50m South East Of Twinstead Hall	High	0-250m
1123292	II	Archway/Stables 50m South West Of Auberies	High	1km-3km
1123293	II	The Old Vicarage	High	1km-3km
1123295	II	The Cottage	High	1km-3km
1123296	II	Dower House	High	1km-3km
1123297	II	"Mullions Lower Houses Nook Green Cottage"	High	1km-3km
1123298	II	Clapps Farm	High	1km-3km
1140092	II	K6 Kiosk Outside Swan Public House	High	1km-3km
1146538	II	Stanley Hall	High	1km-3km
1146556	II	Scott's Cottage	High	250m-1km
1146565	II	The White House	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1146583	II	Oak Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1146603	I	Parish Church Of St John The Baptist	High	1km-3km
1147305	II	Ardsley	High	250m-1km
1147330	II	Cottage Approximately 16m North Of The Pheasant Public House	High	1km-3km
1147342	II	Delvyn's Farm Barn Approximately 70m North West Of House	High	1km-3km
1147364	II	Parkgate Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1147386	II	Parkgate Farm Stables And Cart Lodges Approximately 90m South West Of House	High	1km-3km
1147401	II	Edey's Farmhouse Barn Approximately 10m South East Of House	High	1km-3km
1147413	II	Little Chelmshoe House	High	1km-3km
1147424	II	Little Chelmshoe House Outbuilding Approximately 14m South East Of House	High	1km-3km
1147463	II	Old House	High	250m-1km
1166093	II	Ansell's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1166108	II	Amen Cottage	High	250m-1km
1166127	II	The Old Rectory	High	250m-1km
1166145	II	Hill Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1166151	II	3, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1166168	II	The Eight Bells Public House	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1166171	II	Pilgrims	High	1km-3km
1166227	II	20 And 22, Station Hill	High	1km-3km
1166237	II	Pear Tree	High	1km-3km
1166247	II	Wall Of The White House	High	1km-3km
1166276	II	Cook's Green	High	1km-3km
1166283	II	King's Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1166286	II	Holly Cottage	High	0-250m
1166288	II	Orchard House	High	0-250m
1166305	II	Reynolds	High	0-250m
1166311	II	Lamarsh Hall Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1166331	I	Parish Church Of The Holy Innocents	High	0-250m
1166355	II	Hewitts	High	250m-1km
1168109	II	"North Pott Cottage South Pott Cottage"	High	1km-3km
1168123	II	Hill Farm Barn Approximately 10m East Of House	High	1km-3km
1168137	II	Hill Farm Cart Lodge Adjoining Guild Hall To East Qv 2/44	High	1km-3km
1168206	II	Church Of St Mary The Virgin headstone approx. 10m east of east window and south of Item 4/78	High	1km-3km
1168223	II	Church Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1168257	II	The Thatched Cottage	High	1km-3km
1168268	II	Chelmshoe House	High	1km-3km
1168280	II	Chelmshoe House Barn Approximately 100m North West Of House	High	1km-3km
1168311	II	Old Timbers	High	1km-3km
1168427	II	Forge Cottage Former Smithy, Approximately 10m North West Of Cottage	High	1km-3km
1168444	II	Luckinghouse Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1168478	II	Luckinghouse Farm Outbuilding Adjacent To Road Approximately 20m East Of House	High	1km-3km
1168500	II	Brook Cottage - Croft Cottage	High	1km-3km
1168519	II	Mill Farm House	High	1km-3km
1168607	II	Little Maplestead Hall	High	1km-3km
1168644	II	Mosses Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1168656	II	Broomhill Cottage	High	250m-1km
1168691	II	Hurrells Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1168703	II	Woodertons Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1168755	II	Hall Corner Cottage	High	1km-3km
1168779	II	Oak Cottage	High	1km-3km
1168795	II	Motts Garden	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1168806	II	Bricks Farm Cottage	High	250m-1km
1168844	II	Bricks Farm Cartlodge Adjoining Barn Item 4/166 To South West	High	250m-1km
1168870	*	Church Of All Saints	High	0-250m
1168903	II	Lawrence's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1168915	II	Great Lodge Farm, Barn Approximately 35m South East Of House	High	1km-3km
1168941	II	Oak Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1168953	II	Brickwall Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1168985	II	Moorings	High	0-250m
1169001	II	School Cottages	High	250m-1km
1169034	II	Morlins	High	0-250m
1169114	II	Badgers And Camille Cottage	High	1km-3km
1169123	II	Pannels Ash Farm, Outbuilding Approximately 30m North West Of House	High	1km-3km
1169693	*	Butlers Hall Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1169705	I	Parish Church Of St Andrew	High	1km-3km
1169715	II	House East Of Cock And Blackbird	High	1km-3km
1169736	II	Jenkins Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1169747	II	Unnamed Cottage	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1169754	II	Unnamed House	High	1km-3km
1169798	II	Thorncroft Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1169803	II	Tiddlers And House To North	High	250m-1km
1169805	II	Street Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1169822	II	Gentry's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1169829	II	Barn At Lodge Farm	High	250m-1km
1169846	II	Thatched Cottage	High	1km-3km
1169855	II	Queens Beeches	High	1km-3km
1169919	II	Pair Of Gatepiers 50m North West Of Twinstead Hall	High	0-250m
1169923	II	Lark Hill Cottage / Newhouse Cottage	High	250m-1km
1169930	II	Village Pump On South East Corner Of Green	High	250m-1km
1170791	II	Barn 30m North West Of Bentall's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1170939	II	Barn Approximately 35m West Of Baggarett's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1180454	II	Red House Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1180619	I	Abbas Hall	High	1km-3km
1180656	II	The Red House	High	1km-3km
1180785	II	Wrongs Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1180811	II	2-10, Middleton Road	High	1km-3km
1181413	II	Layham Park	High	0-250m
1181498	II	Greylands	High	250m-1km
1181511	II	Green's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1181518	II	Acre Piece	High	250m-1km
1181529	I	Church Of All Saints	High	1km-3km
1181530	II	Peacock Hall	High	1km-3km
1181812	II	Overbury Hall	High	0-250m
1181816	II	Holbecks	High	1km-3km
1181820	II	Potts Cottage	High	1km-3km
1181827	II	The Queen's Head Inn	High	0-250m
1181837	II	Netherbury Hall	High	0-250m
1181839	II	Cottage Adjoining Marquis Cornwallis Inn	High	250m-1km
1182263	II	Snail Hall And Snails Hall Cottage	High	250m-1km
1182270	II	The Bower Close	High	250m-1km
1182274	II	Nussteads	High	0-250m
1182277	II	Cock Farmhouse	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1182281	II	The Olde Stores	High	250m-1km
1182302	II	Arborette	High	250m-1km
1182313	II	The Cottage	High	250m-1km
1182323	II	Tinkers Cottage	High	250m-1km
1182333	II	Corder's House	High	250m-1km
1182360	II	Sprott's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1182361	II	Granary To The North Of High Trees Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1182388	II	The Cottage	High	1km-3km
1182396	II	Spencer's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1182431	II	Potash Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1182448	II	Dovecote To The South Of Polstead Ponds Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1193181	II	Layham Hall	High	250m-1km
1193203	II	Wayside	High	1km-3km
1193209	II	Spider Hall	High	1km-3km
1193243	II	Ponds Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1193263	II	Five Bay Barn At Sulleys Manor Farm	High	1km-3km
1193318	II	Raydon House Nursing Home	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1193333	II	Raydon Hall	High	1km-3km
1193444	II	Old Mill Cottage	High	0-250m
1193450	II	Chattisham Hall	High	0-250m
1193456	II	The Clayes	High	250m-1km
1193560	II	The Old School House	High	1km-3km
1193614	II	Old Gaol	High	1km-3km
1193620	II	4 And 6, Butcher's Lane	High	1km-3km
1193625	II	Street Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1193630	II	Corner Cottage	High	250m-1km
1193643	II	The Old Forge	High	1km-3km
1193649	II	15, Church Street	High	1km-3km
1193660	II	Peyton House	High	1km-3km
1193664	II	8 And 10, Ellis Street	High	1km-3km
1193677	II	22, 24 And 26, Ellis Street	High	1km-3km
1193681	II	Greenbank	High	1km-3km
1193696	II	15, Stone Street	High	1km-3km
1193703	II	25 And 27, Stone Street	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1193706	II	Balham House	High	1km-3km
1193710	II	26-30, Stone Street	High	1km-3km
1193712	II	Boxford House	High	1km-3km
1193715	II	Dovecote To The North Of Parsonage Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1193720	II	12 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1193737	II	51-55 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1193744	II	63-67 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1193760	II	Hendrick House	High	1km-3km
1193765	*	95, 97 And 99 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1193769	II	15 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1193780	II	13-17, Benton Street	High	1km-3km
1193784	II	Park Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1193796	II	37-41, Benton Street	High	1km-3km
1193804	II	27 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1193805	II	Falcon Inn	High	250m-1km
1193814	II	Hintlesham Priory	High	1km-3km
1193819	*	77-81, Benton Street	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1193827	II	109-113 Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1193829	II	43 And 45 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1193833	II	The Manor	High	250m-1km
1193840	II	No. 1 Cherry Ground Cottages, Wash Lane, Boxford	High	1km-3km
1193844	II	70, Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1193867	II	Old Bakers	High	250m-1km
1193916	II	Springvale	High	1km-3km
1193924	II	2 And 4, Lower Street	High	1km-3km
1193934	*	21, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1193937	II	Walnut Cottage	High	1km-3km
1193944	II	Malthouse Adjoining Number 23	High	1km-3km
1193955	II	Mill House	High	1km-3km
1193958	*	Sun Court	High	1km-3km
1193972	II	38 And 40, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1193977	*	White Hart Inn	High	1km-3km
1193982	II	Post Office	High	1km-3km
1193985	II	Poplar Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1194021	II	8, Church Street	High	1km-3km
1194031	I	Deanery Tower	High	1km-3km
1194037	II	Moor's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1194046	I	Guildhall	High	1km-3km
1194048	*	Church Of St Mary	High	1km-3km
1194061	*	Deanery	High	1km-3km
1194068	II	Front Wall Of Garden Of Deanery Lodge	High	1km-3km
1194074	II	Friars Hall Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1194115	II	1, George Street	High	1km-3km
1194116	II	Park Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1194123	II	23, George Street	High	1km-3km
1194124	II	Willow Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1194128	II	31 And 33, George Street	High	1km-3km
1194136	II	Centuries	High	250m-1km
1194139	II	47 And 49, George Street	High	1km-3km
1194153	II	Tudor House	High	1km-3km
1194179	II	2, High Street	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1194181	II	10 And 11, The Street	High	250m-1km
1194183	II	8, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194202	II	16 And 18, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194223	II	Felcourt	High	1km-3km
1194246	II	Inglenook	High	1km-3km
1194264	II	Nos. 21 To 23 (Consec) The Street	High	250m-1km
1194279	II	King's Head Inn	High	1km-3km
1194288	II	100, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194306	*	108 And 110, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194315	II	116, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194322	*	124 And 126, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194324	*	Church Of St Peter	High	1km-3km
1194334	II	3 And 5, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194341	II	11, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194344	II	17 And 19, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194348	II	Groves Garage	High	1km-3km
1194355	II	33, High Street	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1194377	II	Chelmesis	High	1km-3km
1194408	*	Fen Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1194408	*	Church Of St Mary	High	250m-1km
1194446	II	Amor Hall	High	1km-3km
1194454	II	91 And 93 High Street	High	1km-3km
1194462	II	101, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194465	II	105, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194477	II	131, High Street	High	1km-3km
1194489	*	Smallbridge Hall	High	1km-3km
1194509	II	6 And 8, Market Place	High	1km-3km
1194514	II	Town Hall	High	1km-3km
1194519	II	Ancient Walls North And East Toppersfield Hall	High	1km-3km
1194545	II	Manor Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1194552	*	Barn Approximately 150m North Of Little Wenham Castle And West Of Church Of St Lawrence	High	1km-3km
1194559	II	Pond Hall	High	0-250m
1194561	II	Manora	High	1km-3km
1194566	II	Sherbourne House	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1194568	II	5, Pound Lane	High	1km-3km
1194573	II	Edwardstone House	High	1km-3km
1194592	*	Benton End House	High	0-250m
1194597	II	Outbuildings Including Granary Of Benton End House To The South East Of The House	High	0-250m
1194612	II	Redhouse Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1194614	II	Primrose Cottage	High	1km-3km
1194623	II	8 And 9, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1194640	II	Rose Cottage	High	1km-3km
1194648	II	Farm Buildings Complex Approximately 50m North Of Little Wenham Castle Adjacent To South Of The Churchyard	High	1km-3km
1194667	II	Wenham Grove Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1194677	II	Outbuilding, probably a former dairy/bakehouse/brewhouse adjacent to north of Wenham Lodge	High	1km-3km
1194700	II	The Manse	High	1km-3km
1194704	II	Table Tomb And Enclosing Railings Approximately 14m South Of South Wall Of Chancel Church Of St Lawrence	High	1km-3km
1194713	II	50, Ballingdon Street	High	1km-3km
1194715	II	Old Forge House	High	1km-3km
1194719	II	Shelley Dairy	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1194750	II	Sunday School To Bures Baptist Church	High	1km-3km
1194758	II	Bures House	High	1km-3km
1194769	II	Cartlodge Approximately 30 M North Of Shelley Dairy	High	1km-3km
1194777	II	Spread Eagle	High	1km-3km
1194781	II	Teapot Cottage	High	1km-3km
1194789	II	High Pale Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1194801	II	Abram Constables	High	250m-1km
1199284	II	Jarvis Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1199435	II	Watkinsons	High	1km-3km
1199934	II	The Temple	High	1km-3km
1200030	I	Church Of St Mary	High	1km-3km
1200061	II	Wall To The North East Of The Old Vicarage	High	1km-3km
1200071	II	The Vicarage	High	1km-3km
1200084	II	Street Cottage	High	1km-3km
1200113	*	The Downs Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1200248	II	Main Lodge To Tendring Hall Park	High	1km-3km
1200272	II	Sunnyside	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1200277	II	Angel Inn	High	1km-3km
1200286	II	Postboys	High	1km-3km
1200343	II	Stoke By Nayland Primary School	High	1km-3km
1200346	II	St Anthony's Cottage Walnut Tree Cottage	High	1km-3km
1200348	*	The Old Guildhall / Tudor Cottages	High	1km-3km
1200445	II	Scotland Place	High	1km-3km
1200516	II	Jums Cottage And Riches Cottage	High	250m-1km
1200526	II	Holly Cottage	High	1km-3km
1200672	II	Pond Cottage	High	1km-3km
1200685	II	Thatched Cottage	High	1km-3km
1208226	II	Daisy Cottage	High	1km-3km
1208235	I	Church Of St Mary The Virgin	High	1km-3km
1217050	II	K6 Telephone Kiosk Outside St Barnabas Church	High	250m-1km
1217125	II	Barn Approximately 40m South West Of Lamarsh Hall Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1221811	II	K6 Kiosk	High	1km-3km
1233356	II	Corn Hall	High	250m-1km
1233395	II	Kingsland House	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1233414	II	Cottage About 70m East North East Of Corn Hall Including Wall And Dovecote Adjoining Northeast	High	250m-1km
1233527	II	School Farm Barn At Rear And Approximately 40m West Of House	High	1km-3km
1233618	II	Jane Walker Hospital	High	1km-3km
1233724	II	Boiler House And Laundry North Of Jane Walker Hospital	High	1km-3km
1233822	II	Byham Hall Barn Approximately 70m North East Of Hall	High	250m-1km
1233828	II	School Farm Barn To Left And Approximately 40m South Of House	High	1km-3km
1233831	II	Stonehouse Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1233833	II	Park Farm House	High	250m-1km
1233836	II	K6 Telephone Kiosk Outside Village Hall	High	0-250m
1233869	II	St Giles Church Of England School	High	1km-3km
1233875	II	Former Coach House To The Vicarage	High	1km-3km
1234037	II	K6 Telephone Kiosk	High	250m-1km
1234788	II	The Orchards	High	0-250m
1234888	II	Barn Immediately South East Of Goodlands Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1244713	II	Barn To West Of Scotland Place	High	1km-3km
1246134	II	War Memorial In The Churchyard Of St Marys Church	High	1km-3km
1250910	II	The Gables	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1250911	II	Runcton House	High	1km-3km
1250913	II	Bridge House	High	1km-3km
1250914	II	Millbank	High	1km-3km
1250915	II	Set Of 3 Gatepiers To Entrance Of Driveway Of Millbank	High	1km-3km
1250916	II	Mill House	High	1km-3km
1250917	II	Grove House Little Grove The Grove	High	1km-3km
1250918	II	The Old Primary School And School House	High	1km-3km
1250919	*	Bramford House	High	1km-3km
1250920	II	Tudor Cottage	High	1km-3km
1250921	II	51, 53 And 55, The Street	High	1km-3km
1250922	II	67, The Street	High	1km-3km
1250923	II	Royal Oak House	High	1km-3km
1250924	II	Street Farm Cottage	High	1km-3km
1250929	II	Lovetofts Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1250930	II	Granary 5 M West Of Gates Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1250943	II	Rose Cottage	High	1km-3km
1251035	II	Two Tuns Cottage	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1251072	II	Numbers 74, 76 And 78 and that part of Number 1 Raven's Lane which is structurally part of Number 78	High	1km-3km
1251233	I	Church Of St Mary	High	0-250m
1251241	II	Valley Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1251403	II	Elm Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1251408	I	Church Of St Mary	High	1km-3km
1251599	I	Church Of St Mary	High	1km-3km
1251601	II	The Duke of Malborough Public House	High	0-250m
1251603	II	Thornbush Hall	High	1km-3km
1251604	II	Rutters Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1251669	II	Bleak Hall	High	1km-3km
1251732	II	King's Cottage, Street Farm And Lower Somersham Post Office	High	1km-3km
1262551	II	Outhouse Approximately 8m West Of Rutters Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1262694	II	Church Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1262861	II	Gates Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1262946	II	6, 8 And 10, The Street	High	1km-3km
1262986	II	The Cock Inn	High	1km-3km
1263014	II	North Warehouse At Fisons Horticultural Division Works	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1263015	II	Walling And Gateway Along Road Frontage To Bramford House, With Return 10 M West Of House	High	1km-3km
1263016	II	Fidgeons Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1263017	II	Spar Food Store	High	1km-3km
1263018	II	Tye Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1263027	II	The Old Rectory	High	1km-3km
1268175	II	Over Hall	High	250m-1km
1272025	II	Fieldfares	High	1km-3km
1272238	II	Cart Lodge To North West Of Scotland Place	High	1km-3km
1276328	II	Little Mill House (About 400 M West North West Of Smallbridge Hall)	High	1km-3km
1276392	II	Parsonage House	High	1km-3km
1276815	II	Stables And Coach House To Former Assington Hall	High	1km-3km
1283138	I	Giffords Hall	High	1km-3km
1284533	II	Barn To The East Of Steps Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1284554	I	Church Of St Mary	High	250m-1km
1284570	II	Woodland View	High	250m-1km
1284597	II	Oak Cottage	High	250m-1km
1284612	II	Brewery Farmhouse	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1284622	II	Evans Hall	High	1km-3km
1284805	II	Layham House	High	0-250m
1284842	II	Valley Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1285440	II	Wicker Street House	High	1km-3km
1285442	II	Elm Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1285443	II	Curtis Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1285529	II	Dunstead House	High	250m-1km
1285545	II	1, Nayland Road	High	1km-3km
1285564	II	62, Ballingdon Street	High	1km-3km
1285566	II	Barn Approximately 10 M South Of Shelley Dairy	High	1km-3km
1285586	II	Wall And Gates Adjacent To Road, Enclosing Garden To North Of Wenham Grange	High	1km-3km
1285589	II	Spout Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1285599	II	Little Wenham Hall Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1285617	II	Fysh House	High	1km-3km
1285618	II	Sideways	High	1km-3km
1285628	II	The Store	High	1km-3km
1285654	II	Holbeck's Cottage	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1285659	II	Ram Inn	High	1km-3km
1285683	II	117 And 119, High Street	High	1km-3km
1285727	II	Coles Green Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1285740	II	Jermyns Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1285748	II	Huntley House	High	1km-3km
1285751	II	37 And 39, High Street	High	1km-3km
1285760	II	104, High Street	High	1km-3km
1285761	II	Copdock Mill	High	1km-3km
1285788	II	82, High Street	High	1km-3km
1285790	II	Dakons	High	250m-1km
1285790	II	Barns At Redhouse Farm	High	1km-3km
1285798	II	22-26, High Street	High	1km-3km
1285802	II	32, High Street	High	1km-3km
1285814	II	109, George Street	High	1km-3km
1285836	II	11 And 13, George Street	High	1km-3km
1285850	II	The Hollies	High	250m-1km
1285893	II	2, Church Street	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1285906	II	Barn At Belstead Hall	High	1km-3km
1285915	II	Sproughton Hall	High	1km-3km
1285933	II	Red House	High	1km-3km
1285956	*	Church Of All Saints	High	1km-3km
1285964	II	Green Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1285973	II	31 And 33 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1285978	II	37 And 39 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1285985	II	United Reformed Church	High	1km-3km
1285993	II	145, Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1285999	II	1-5, Benton Street	High	1km-3km
1286005	II	19 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1286010	II	Normans Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1286028	II	85a And 87 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1286037	II	Compasses Inn	High	1km-3km
1286088	II	1 And 3, Church Street	High	1km-3km
1286092	II	Peyton Hall	High	250m-1km
1286247	*	Church Of St Mary	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1286268	II	Sulleys Manor	High	1km-3km
1293253	II	Cherry Orchard	High	1km-3km
1300749	II	Ridgeway Cottage	High	1km-3km
1300763	II	Scotland Hall	High	1km-3km
1300833	II	Clip Bush Cottages	High	1km-3km
1300848	II	The Cottage	High	1km-3km
1300858	II	Dickhill Cottage	High	1km-3km
1300930	II	The Old Bakehouse And Fenwood	High	1km-3km
1300937	II	Tudor Cottage	High	1km-3km
1306308	*	Church Of St John The Evangelist	High	0-250m
1306317	II	2 Interlocking Walled Gardens Including Beebole 30m South East Of Twinstead Hall	High	0-250m
1306332	II	The Ryes	High	250m-1km
1306341	II	Old Roses Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1306346	II	Cottage 20m Northwest Of Sparrows Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1306355	II	Howe House	High	250m-1km
1306359	II	Henny Cottage	High	1km-3km
1306390	II	Tyecorner Farmhouse	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1306391	II	"Clematis Tin Tops"	High	1km-3km
1306392	II	Clement Cottage	High	1km-3km
1306400	II	Langley Cottage Wartin	High	1km-3km
1306419	II	Gatepiers, Gates And Railings To Auberies	High	1km-3km
1306695	II	Pannels Ash Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1306758	II	Chestnut	High	250m-1km
1306791	II	Netherby And Adjoining Cottage	High	0-250m
1306797	II	Catley Farm Outbuildings Approximately 6m To Rear And West Of House	High	250m-1km
1306871	II	Whitecote	High	1km-3km
1306977	II	Mill Farm Barn Approximately 40m South East Of House	High	1km-3km
1306995	II	St Giles Cottage	High	1km-3km
1307050	II	Byham Hall	High	250m-1km
1307074	II	Walnut Tree Cottage	High	1km-3km
1307107	*	Gestingthorpe Hall	High	1km-3km
1307114	II	Gestingthorpe Hall Dovecote Approximately 100m South East Of Hall	High	1km-3km
1307147	II	The Rectory	High	1km-3km
1308537	II	Tudor Lodge Pump In Front Garden West Of House	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1308577	II	Milestone On Southern Verge Approximately 250m West Of Moat Farm Corner Tl814 267	High	250m-1km
1308890	II	Saddler's Cottage And Ivy Cottage	High	1km-3km
1308918	II	The Post Office	High	1km-3km
1308939	*	World's End Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1308948	II	Brook House	High	0-250m
1308958	II	Abbot's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1308990	II	Coach House And Stable Block Approximately 10m North Of Secretaries Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1308992	II	Brewsters	High	0-250m
1309041	II	Little Fairing	High	250m-1km
1309050	II	Barn Approximately 70m North East Of Bombose Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1309067	II	Goulds Road	High	250m-1km
1337866	II	Largess Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1337880	II	Lower Farm Cottages	High	250m-1km
1337881	II	Old Fenners	High	250m-1km
1337882	II	Pump, 10m North Of Henny Street Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1337883	II	Cart Lodge At Gentry's Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1337884	II	Outbuilding At The Ryes	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1337885	II	Sparrows Farmhouse	High	0-250m
1337886	II	Pelham Hall	High	250m-1km
1337887	II	Gate Piers 40m North West Of Twinstead Hall	High	0-250m
1337888	II	Sparrow Hall	High	250m-1km
1337893	II	Auberies	High	1km-3km
1337894	II	Gentry's Cottage	High	0-250m
1337895	II	Griggs Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1337896	II	Cock And Blackbird Public House	High	1km-3km
1337897	II	Former Plough Public House	High	1km-3km
1337898	II	Applecroft Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1337909	II	The Roses	High	250m-1km
1337958	II	Brambles Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1337978	II	Mosses Farm Barn Approximately 20m North East Of House	High	250m-1km
1337979	II	Saxbys	High	1km-3km
1337980	II	Red House	High	1km-3km
1337981	II	Hampers Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1337982	*	Moat Farmhouse	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1337983	II	Nether Hall Barn Approximately 50 M North Of Hall	High	1km-3km
1337984	II	Pot Kilns	High	1km-3km
1337985	II	Ashley Cottage	High	1km-3km
1337986	II	Church Cottages	High	1km-3km
1337987	II	Gestingthorpe Hall Outbuilding Approximately 20m North West Of Hall	High	1km-3km
1337988	II	White Cottage	High	1km-3km
1337989	I	Church Of St Giles	High	1km-3km
1337990	II	September Cottage	High	1km-3km
1338001	II	Wickham Hall	High	0-250m
1338002	*	Catley Cross House	High	250m-1km
1338003	II	Brickwall Farm Cartlodge With Granary Over Adjoining House To The South East	High	0-250m
1338004	II	Rosedene	High	250m-1km
1338005	II	Shellards	High	250m-1km
1338012	II	Forge Cottage	High	1km-3km
1338013	II	Luckinghouse Farm Oast House Approximately 8m West Of House	High	1km-3km
1338014	II	Skippers	High	1km-3km
1338015	II	Mill Farm Stables Approximately 25m South West Of House	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1338017	*	Church Of St John The Baptist	High	1km-3km
1338073	II	Maple Croft	High	1km-3km
1338077	II	The Barn	High	0-250m
1338083	II	Barn Approximately 55m South East Of Clees Hall	High	1km-3km
1338084	II	Granary Approximately East South East Of Clees Hall	High	250m-1km
1338085	II	Wall Extending Eastwards From King's Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1338087	II	Ancillary Building 15m North West Of Ferriers Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1338088	II	The Cottage	High	1km-3km
1338099	II	Dagworth Manor	High	0-250m
1338100	II	Hoblets	High	1km-3km
1338101	II	Lichen Cottage	High	1km-3km
1338102	II	Spoons Hall	High	1km-3km
1338103	II	Hope Cottage	High	250m-1km
1338104	II	34 And 36, Water Lane	High	1km-3km
1338110	II	Boat House Cottage / The Boat House	High	1km-3km
1338111	II	Pricketts Hall	High	1km-3km
1338112	II	Polstead's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1338113	II	Ravensfield Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1338114	II	The Swan Public House	High	1km-3km
1338115	II	Newman's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1338116	II	Chapel Cottage	High	0-250m
1338356	II	Odewells Barn Approximately 40m North East Of House	High	1km-3km
1338357	II	Tudor Lodge Barn Approximately 100m South East Of House	High	250m-1km
1338394	II	Delvyn's Cottage Including Attached Wall Enclosing Front Garden	High	1km-3km
1338395	II	Edey's Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351355	II	Ballingdon Grove	High	1km-3km
1351358	II	63, Ballingdon Street	High	1km-3km
1351398	II	White Hart Inn	High	1km-3km
1351399	II	16 And 18, Ellis Street	High	1km-3km
1351400	II	Thatch End	High	1km-3km
1351401	II	17 And 19, Stone Street	High	1km-3km
1351402	II	The Firs	High	1km-3km
1351403	II	Parsonage Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351414	II	Knollgate	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351425	II	24 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1351426	II	28 And 30 Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1351427	II	Wynne House	High	1km-3km
1351428	II	3 And 5, Swan Street	High	1km-3km
1351429	II	The Old Manse	High	1km-3km
1351430	II	4, Whitestreet Green	High	250m-1km
1351434	II	Brick Kiln Hill Cottages	High	250m-1km
1351435	II	Graham House / Belsize	High	1km-3km
1351436	II	18 And 20, Broad Street	High	1km-3km
1351437	II	The Close	High	1km-3km
1351441	II	Garden Wall To Sherbourne House	High	1km-3km
1351442	II	Edwardstone Lodge	High	1km-3km
1351462	II	Wall Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351463	II	Wheelwright Cottages	High	1km-3km
1351464	II	Elm Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351487	II	Hollies Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351488	II	Manor Farmhouse	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351552	II	Stoke Road Cottage	High	250m-1km
1351553	II	The Dower House	High	0-250m
1351561	II	Bower House	High	1km-3km
1351562	II	The Old Forge	High	250m-1km
1351563	II	Rose Cottage	High	250m-1km
1351564	II	West Cottage	High	250m-1km
1351565	II	Waterloo House	High	250m-1km
1351566	II	Green Cottage / Hillside Cottage	High	250m-1km
1351567	II	Brook Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351586	II	Martins Hill	High	1km-3km
1351587	II	New Mill Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351588	II	The Nook	High	1km-3km
1351589	II	Capricorn	High	1km-3km
1351590	II	The Old Post Cottage	High	250m-1km
1351594	II	Uplands House	High	250m-1km
1351609	II	Mannings Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351617	II	Fenn Farmhouse	High	0-250m

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351618	II	Barn At White House Farm	High	250m-1km
1351619	II	Half Moon	High	0-250m
1351620	*	Church Of All Saints	High	250m-1km
1351621	II	Cartshed At Chattisham Place	High	250m-1km
1351622	II	The Old Rectory	High	250m-1km
1351627	II	Barn To Spider Hall	High	1km-3km
1351628	II	Six Bay Barn At Sulleys Manor Farm	High	1km-3km
1351629	II	Ruggs	High	1km-3km
1351634	II	Sycamore House	High	1km-3km
1351634	II	Redhouse Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351635	II	Barn At Copdock Hall	High	1km-3km
1351636	II	Gainsborough	High	1km-3km
1351643	II	Hyntle Place	High	250m-1km
1351644	II	Church Of St Nicholas	High	250m-1km
1351645	II	Hintlesham Hall Lodge	High	1km-3km
1351646	II	The Wild Man	High	1km-3km
1351647	II	Barn About 50 M South West Of Sproughton Hall	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351648	*	Belstead Hall	High	1km-3km
1351660	II	Monument To Doctor Rowland Taylor	High	1km-3km
1351672	II	28-34, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1351673	II	44, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1351674	II	3 And 5, Church Street	High	1km-3km
1351675	II	6, Church Street	High	1km-3km
1351676	II	Wall On West Side Of Churchyard South Of Deanery Tower	High	1km-3km
1351677	II	Front Wall Of Garden Of Deanery To North	High	1km-3km
1351678	II	The Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351679	II	20, Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1351680	II	58 And 60 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1351681	II	68 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1351682	II	76 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1351683	II	73-79 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1351684	II	111-115 Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1351685	II	149 And 151, Angel Street	High	1km-3km
1351686	II	31-35, Benton Street	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351687	II	69 And 71, Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1351688	II	Front Wall Of Number 81	High	250m-1km
1351689	II	28, 30 And 32, Benton Street	High	1km-3km
1351690	II	86, Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1351693	II	128, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351694	II	7, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351695	II	21 And 23, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351696	II	Police Station	High	1km-3km
1351697	II	35, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351698	II	1, Duke Street	High	1km-3km
1351699	II	11, Duke Street	High	1km-3km
1351700	II	4-8 Duke Street	High	1km-3km
1351701	*	22-26, George Street	High	1km-3km
1351702	II	35 And 37, George Street	High	1km-3km
1351703	II	Cock Inn	High	1km-3km
1351704	II	111, George Street	High	1km-3km
1351705	II	10 And 12, High Street	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351706	II	20, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351707	*	Barclays Bank	High	1km-3km
1351708	*	The Manse	High	250m-1km
1351709	II	Garden Wall North, East And South Of Number 90 (The Manse)	High	250m-1km
1351710	II	102-108 Benton Street	High	250m-1km
1351711	II	Barn Of Priory Farm	High	250m-1km
1351716	II	Aveley Hall	High	1km-3km
1351717	II	51, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351718	II	55, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351719	II	65, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351720	II	73-77, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351721	II	87, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351722	II	133, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351723	II	Wing To East Of Ram Inn	High	1km-3km
1351724	II	Corn Exchange	High	1km-3km
1351725	II	Peyton Hall	High	1km-3km
1351726	II	Hadleigh School	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351727	II	2-10, Queen Street	High	1km-3km
1351728	II	George Inn	High	1km-3km
1351729	II	56 And 58, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351730	I	62-66, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351731	II	72 And 74, High Street	High	1km-3km
1351736	II	Kiln Cottage	High	0-250m
1351737	II	Diljack's Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1351738	II	Barn To The North West Of Dorking Tye House	High	0-250m
1351742	I	Chapel Of St Stephen	High	1km-3km
1351743	II	Gazeley Gate	High	250m-1km
1351744	II	11, Bridge Street	High	1km-3km
1351745	II	Malthouse Range To West Of The Store And Kerseys Building	High	1km-3km
1351746	II	Coram Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351747	II	Former Hadleigh Railway Station	High	1km-3km
1351761	II	The Kings Head Inn	High	1km-3km
1351762	II	Brook House	High	1km-3km
1351763	II	Tanchin And Bondi	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351764	II	Outbuildings To The South West Of The Vicarage	High	1km-3km
1351765	II	White Horse House	High	1km-3km
1351766	*	The Old Bakery	High	1km-3km
1351767	II	Tadworth	High	1km-3km
1351768	II	Millhouse East Of Bures Mill	High	1km-3km
1351769	II	Barn To The North Of Great Bevills	High	1km-3km
1351770	II	Woolman's Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1351781	II	Greys Hall Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351782	II	Grassmere Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351783	II	Corrie Hall	High	1km-3km
1351784	II	Sackers Green	High	1km-3km
1351791	II	The Harwell	High	250m-1km
1351792	II	Tudor Cottage	High	250m-1km
1351806	II	Spring Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351807	II	Hare And Hounds Public House	High	0-250m
1351808	II	Heathcote	High	250m-1km
1351827	II	Wall To Walled Garden At Peacocks Hall	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351828	II	Blacksmiths Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351829	II	Pump Cottage	High	250m-1km
1351881	II	Sparrows	High	1km-3km
1351890	II	Sir Hugh's And Hope Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351891	II	St Mary's Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351897	II	Ruined Chapel Of St Nicholas	High	1km-3km
1351899	II	Almshouses	High	1km-3km
1351900	II	Half Moon Cottage And Shop Adjoining	High	1km-3km
1351901	II	The Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351902	II	The Hatch	High	1km-3km
1351903	II	Little Gables	High	1km-3km
1351904	II	Gouldings Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351911	II	Bishops	High	1km-3km
1351912	II	Scotland House	High	1km-3km
1351913	II	House To The West Owned By Mrs A L Jones	High	250m-1km
1351919	II	Round House Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351920	II	April Cottage	High	1km-3km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1351921	II	House Owned By Sir Joshua Rowley Old Butcher's Shop Occupied By K And K Electrical	High	1km-3km
1351922	II	The White House		1km-3km
1351923	II	Park House	High	1km-3km
1351924	II	Grimsey Cottages	High	1km-3km
1351925	II	Holly Tree Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351926	II	Gads Hill	High	1km-3km
1351927	II	Oak Bough	High	1km-3km
1351928	II	White Horse Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351943	II	Hold Farmhouse	High	1km-3km
1351946	II	Chapel Adjoining North West Of Jane Walker Hospital	High	1km-3km
1351957	II	Vauxhall	High	250m-1km
1351958	II	Farm Buildings anomaly Complex To West Of Barn And Buildings Listed 3/80 Little Wenham Castle	High	1km-3km
1351959	*	Church Of All Saints	High	1km-3km
1351980	II	Church Cottage	High	1km-3km
1351981	II	Shelley Hall	High	1km-3km
1351982	II	Barn Approximately 40m South West Of Shelley Hall	High	1km-3km
1365320	II	Farm Building Range Including Adjoining Barns About 100m East Of Corn Hall	High	250m-1km

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1365610	II	Rectory Farmhouse	High	250m-1km
1372456	II	The Grindle House	High	1km-3km
1375633	II	Kiln Farm	High	1km-3km
1381824	II	The War Memorial	High	1km-3km
1387263	II	Guinea Wiggs	High	1km-3km
1389369	II	War Memorial At St Marys Church	High	250m-1km
1389598	II	War Memorial	High	1km-3km
1390730	II	War Memorial In St Marys Churchyard	High	1km-3km
1391366	II	War Memorial	High	1km-3km
1392208	II	Creems	High	1km-3km
1393784	II	War Memorial In Churchyard Of All Saints	High	1km-3km
1401175	II	Goulding's Farm Barn	High	1km-3km
1408083	II	Walls Both Bordering The Road And Within The Site At Samsons Motorworks	High	1km-3km
1431193	II	The Cottage	High	250m-1km
1441403	II	Sprites Primary Academy, including entrance walls with sculptural relief panels to Stonechat Road	High	1km-3km
1446966	II	Stable At High Trees Farm	High	0-250m
1446967	II	Threshing Barn At High Trees Farm	High	0-250m

NHLE ID	Listing Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
1464995	II	Hintlesham War Memorial	High	250m-1km
1466689	II	Raydon War Memorial	High	1km-3km
1468467	II	Layham War Memorial	High	0-250m

3.3 Non-designated Built Heritage Assets

Non-designated built heritage assets are listed in Table 3.3 and are shown on Figure 8.2: Built Heritage Assets (**application document 6.4**) along with their HER reference.

Table 3.3 – Non-designated Historic Buildings

HER reference	Name and Description	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
MSF26067	Pillbox, Spout Lane - rectangular pillbox built into side of sunken lane	Low	Within
MSF35002	Stour Valley Railway Line (Great Eastern Railway)	Low	Within
MEX1034883	Pillbox, Edgars Farm, Lamarsh - concrete pillbox dating to World War II	Low	Within
MEX1034884	Pillbox, Edgars Farm, Lamarsh - concrete pillbox dating to World War II	Low	Within
MEX1035629	Historic cast iron water pump north west of Cripple Corner, Pebmarsh	Low	0-250m

4. Historic Landscapes

4.1 Introduction

The elements of the historic landscape resource comprise designated registered parks and gardens, designated Protected Lanes (Essex only), historic landscape characterisation (HLC) which is a broad characterisation exercise based on historic mapping and surviving historic character elements such as hedgerows, banks and ditches. The important hedgerows (including those with heritage features) are listed in ES Appendix 7.5: Important Hedgerow Assessment (application document 6.3.7.5) and are not duplicated here.

4.2 Historic Parks and Gardens

Registered historic parks and gardens were provided by the NHLE for a 3km study area. Non-designated historic parks and gardens were included for a smaller 250m study area. Both are listed in Table 4.1 and shown on ES Figure 8.3: Historic Landscape Character Units (application document 6.4).

Table 4.1 – Historic Parks and Gardens Within 3km

NHLE/ HER ID	Grade	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
Registered	d Histor	ic Parks and Gardens (3km study area)		
1000271	II	Chantry Park	Medium	2.6km
1000406	II	Tendring Hall Park	Medium	2.4km
Non-desig	nated F	listoric Parks and Gardens (250m study area)		
MSF11949	N/A	Hintlesham Park (around Hintlesham Hall) – historic parkland around Hintlesham Hall, part of which remains. The parkland dates to the 16th century with later changes. Some elements of the former parkland survive, such as ornamental earthworks and the remnants of tree-lined avenues. The asset has been degraded through partial reversion to arable use and the partial loss of the tree-lined avenues. This has resulted in severance and erosion of the original character.	Medium	Within

4.3 Historic Lanes and Protected Lanes

4.3.1 Protected Lanes are designated within Braintree District Council's Local Plan (2022) and therefore only lie within Braintree District at the western end of the study area. The data has been gathered up to 3km study area around the Order Limits. The historic lanes in Suffolk are not designated and therefore a 250m study area around the Order Limits has been used for these. Both data sets are reproduced in Table 4.2 and are shown on ES Figure 8.3: Historic Landscape Character Units (application document 6.4).

Table 4.2 – Historic Lanes (Suffolk) and Protected Lanes (Essex)

HER Reference	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
Historic Lanes (Suff	olk)		
N/A	Church Hill, Burstall	Medium	Within
N/A	Pigeon's Lane, Hintlesham	Medium	Within
N/A	Lower Barn Road, Hintlesham	Medium	Within
N/A	Chattisham Lane, Chattisham	Medium	Within
N/A	Clay Hill, Chattisham	Medium	Within
N/A	Woodland's Road, Chattisham	Medium	Within
N/A	Benton Street, Layham (B1070)	Medium	Within
N/A	Mill Lane, Layham	Medium	0-250m
N/A	Water Lane, Layham	Medium	0-250m
N/A	Overbury Hall Road, Layham	Medium	Within
N/A	Rands Road, Layham	Medium	Within
N/A	Popes Green Lane, Polstead Heath	Medium	Within

HER Reference	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
N/A	Stoke Road, Polstead Heath	Medium	Within
N/A	Heath Road, Polstead Heath	Medium	Within
N/A	Holt Road, Polstead Heath	Medium	Within
N/A	Calais Street, Whitestreet Green	Medium	Within
N/A	B1068, Stoke by Nayland	Medium	Within
N/A	Harrow Street, Stoke by Nayland	Medium	Within
N/A	High Road, Assington	Medium	Within
N/A	The Street, Assington	Medium	Within
N/A	Smallbridge Entry, Assington	Medium	Within
N/A	St Edmund's Hill (B1508)	Medium	Within
Protected Lanes (Es	sex)		
BTELANE104	Cangle Lane	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE90	Hornes Green Road	Medium	250m-1km
BTELANE89	Lamarsh Road	Medium	0-250m
BTELANE78	Gentry's Farm Road (Clay Hill)	Medium	Within
BTELANE79	Tymperley Farm Road	Medium	Within
BTELANE80	Tymperley Farm Road	Medium	0-250m
BTELANE84	Old Road	Medium	Within

HER Reference	Name	Assigned Value	Distance from Order Limits
BTELANE85	Lorkins Lane	Medium	Within
BTELANE102	Stonylands Road	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE112	Ravensfield Farm Road	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE107	Brickhouse Road	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE103	Birchwood Road	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE86	Ansells Farm Road	Medium	Within
BTELANE88	Newmans Farm Road	Medium	250m-1km
BTELANE101	Bennetts Road	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE111	Polsteads Farm Road	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE113	Alphamstone Road	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE87	Moat Lane	Medium	Within
BTELANE83	Twinstead Road	Medium	Within
BTELANE81	Loshouse Farm Road	Medium	Within
BTELANE74	Sandy Lane	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE75	Breakmoor Hill	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE100	Bennetts Road	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE149	Mill Lane	Medium	1km-3km
BTELANE146	Barretts Hall Road	Medium	1km-3km

4.4 Historic Landscape Character Units (Suffolk)

The historic landscape character (HLC) units in Suffolk have been identified for up to 1km around the Order Limits to provide context to the landscape within which they are set. The HLC are not given a reference number by Suffolk and are shown on ES Figure 8.3: Historic Landscape Character Units (application document 6.4). These have been grouped by type in Table 4.3 to provide a summary of the HLC within the study area.

Table 4.3 – Historic Landscape Character Units in Suffolk

HLC Type	Number of HLC Types Within the Order Limits	Number of HLC Types Within 0-250m of the Order Limits	Number of HLC Types 250m – 1km of the Order Limits	Value
18th century and later enclosure	8	4	2	Low
Built up areas	30	21	24	Low
Communications	1	0	0	Low
Horticulture	3	0	3	Low
Industrial	0	5	6	Low
Meadow or managed wetland	11	4	6	Low
Post-1950 agricultural landscape	12	8	6	Low
Post-medieval park and leisure	2	1	0	Low
Pre-18 th century enclosure	36	15	15	Low
Woodland	19	23	15	Low

4.5 Historic Landscape Character Units (Essex)

The historic landscape character (HLC) units in Essex have been identified for up to 1km around the Order Limits to provide context to the landscape within which they are set. These have been given a HLC reference number by Essex, as listed in Table 4.4 and are shown on ES Figure 8.3: Historic Landscape Character Units (application document 6.4).

Table 4.4 – Historic Landscape Character Units in Essex

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX17876	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25204	Enclosed Meadow	Within	Low
HEX38588	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38589	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX17878	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX17877	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX17946	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX38590	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25207	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	0-250m	Low
HEX25260	Irregular Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38577	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25249	20th Century Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX25250	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX38578	Boundary Loss	Within	Low

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX25258	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38579	20th Century Enclosure	250m-1km	Low
HEX25251	20th Century Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX25252	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	0-250m	Low
HEX38580	Boundary Loss	250m-1km	Low
HEX38591	Boundary Loss	250m-1km	Low
HEX38583	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25257	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38581	Piecemeal Enclosure By Agreement	0-250m	Low
HEX25259	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX25256	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	0-250m	Low
HEX38601	Boundary Loss	250m-1km	Low
HEX38582	20th Century Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX25264	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	Within	Low
HEX38584	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25253	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	0-250m	Low
HEX25263	Irregular Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX38585	20th Century Enclosure	250m-1km	Low

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX25237	Enclosed Meadow	0-250m	Low
HEX38587	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25238	Irregular Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38586	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX25568	Irregular Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX25211	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	250m-1km	Low
HEX25254	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	0-250m	Low
HEX25255	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	Within	Low
HEX25566	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	0-250m	Low
HEX37950	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25567	Boundary Loss	250m-1km	Low
HEX17977	Boundary Loss	250m-1km	Low
HEX25564	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX17945	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25235	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	Within	Low
HEX25283	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38600	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25321	Enclosed Meadow	0-250m	Low

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX25315	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	Within	Low
HEX25284	Irregular Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX17963	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25563	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25316	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	Within	Low
HEX25318	Irregular Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38563	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25209	Irregular Enclosure	250m-1km	Low
HEX38570	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX37971	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25338	Informal Parkland	0-250m	Low
HEX25314	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25317	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	0-250m	Low
HEX38571	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25248	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX25319	Restored Land	0-250m	Low
HEX25231	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	0-250m	Low
HEX25320	Disused Mineral Extraction	Within	Low

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX25234	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX38508	Piecemeal Enclosure By Agreement	Within	Low
HEX38504	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38506	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25239	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX38505	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38507	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38529	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX25236	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	Within	Low
HEX38512	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38528	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25242	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	Within	Low
HEX38568	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX38530	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX17837	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25241	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	Within	Low
HEX25336	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX38496	20th Century Enclosure	0-250m	Low

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX25230	20th Century Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX25233	Enclosed Meadow	Within	Low
HEX38498	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38531	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25244	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	Within	Low
HEX38509	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX38513	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX17932	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38532	20th Century Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX38502	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25337	Piecemeal Enclosure By Agreement	Within	Low
HEX25329	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	0-250m	Low
HEX38497	Boundary Loss	250m-1km	Low
HEX38534	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38503	Irregular Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38500	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX17931	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX38533	Boundary Loss	Within	Low

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX17930	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX38527	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38526	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38494	Boundary Loss	250m-1km	Low
HEX38525	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38536	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25177	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	0-250m	Low
HEX38537	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX17872	Boundary Loss	250m-1km	Low
HEX25174	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX38538	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25171	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	0-250m	Low
HEX25181	Irregular Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX38535	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25175	Irregular Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX25170	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX38481	20th Century Enclosure	250m-1km	Low
HEX38475	Boundary Loss	Within	Low

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX38482	Irregular Enclosure	250m-1km	Low
HEX38471	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX16725	Ancient Woodland	Within	Medium
HEX25172	Piecemeal Enclosure By Agreement	Within	Low
HEX16726	Ancient Woodland	Within	Medium
HEX29550	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25182	Irregular Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX38480	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX38472	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25173	Irregular Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX29549	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38473	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX17819	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25194	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	0-250m	Low
HEX25169	Piecemeal Enclosure By Agreement	Within	Low
HEX38474	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38470	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX8702	Boundary Loss	250m-1km	Low

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX25195	Piecemeal Enclosure By Agreement	250m-1km	Low
HEX25292	Irregular Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX17785	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX17782	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX38440	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38439	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX38437	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25193	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38436	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38438	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX29551	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX25197	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	0-250m	Low
HEX18088	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38435	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX38433	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX38434	20th Century Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX38432	Piecemeal Enclosure By Agreement	0-250m	Low
HEX25142	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low

HLC Reference	HLC Broad Type / Subcategory	Distance from Order Limits	Value
HEX25196	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX25141	Irregular Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX38430	Irregular Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX25192	18th-20th Century Woodland Plantation	0-250m	Low
HEX17817	Common With A Built Margin	0-250m	Low
HEX17818	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX38431	Boundary Loss	Within	Low
HEX25199	Piecemeal Enclosure By Agreement	0-250m	Low
HEX25198	Built-Up Areas - Urban Development	Within	Low
HEX17784	20th Century Enclosure	Within	Low
HEX17783	20th Century Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX17786	Boundary Loss	0-250m	Low
HEX38406	20th Century Enclosure	250m-1km	Low
HEX38407	Irregular Enclosure	0-250m	Low
HEX25144	Irregular Enclosure	250m-1km	Low
HEX38442	Boundary Loss	Within	Low

National Grid plc National Grid House, Warwick Technology Park, Gallows Hill, Warwick. CV34 6DA United Kingdom

Registered in England and Wales No. 4031152 nationalgrid.com